










BOARD OF EDUCATION
MEETING

  

  

MAY 19, 2008

1



BOARD OF EDUCATION
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS

OMAHA, NEBRASKA

BOARD MEETING STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER
7:00 P.M. 5606 SOUTH 147th STREET

MAY 19, 2008
AGENDA

6:00 P.M. -- PAYBAC Reception

A. Call to Order

The Public Meeting Act is posted on the Wall and Available for Public Inspection

B. Pledge of Allegiance

C. Roll Call

D. Public Comments on agenda items – This is the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda
items only. Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins.

E. Routine Matters
1. *Approval of Board of Education Minutes May 5, 2008
2. *Approval of Bills
3. *Receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File
4. Summary of Committee of the Whole Meeting – May 12, 2008

F. Information Items
1. PAYBAC Awards
2. Employees of the Month
3. Superintendent’s Comments
4. Board Comments/Announcements
5. Reports from Student Representatives and Present Plaques to Students

G. Unfinished Business:
1. Approval of Policy 10001 – Site Based Planning and Management – Mini Magnets

H. New Business
1. Approval of 2008 Graduates
2. Approval of Rule 10001.1 – Site-Based Planning and Management – Mini-Magnet Development
3. Approval of Rule 10001.2 – Site-Based Planning and Management – Center Development: A Plan for

Low Enrollment Buildings
4. First Reading Policy 4300 – Human Resources – Professional Growth/Inservice
5. First Reading of Policy 6200 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Taught Curriculum –

Instructional Delivery
6. Reaffirm Policy 6700 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - Co-Curricular Activities
7. Reaffirm Rule 6700.2 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - Interscholastic Athletics and

Activities – Approval Procedures and Criteria
8. Reaffirm Rule 6700.4 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - Extracurricular School Sponsored

Clubs and Activities, and Interscholastic Athletics and Activities – School Social Events
9. Reaffirm Rule 6700.5 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - Extracurricular School Sponsored

Clubs and Activities, and Interscholastic Athletics and Activities – Intramural Athletics
10. Administrator for Hire
11. Approval of Personnel Actions: Amendment to Continuing Contract(s), Leave(s) of Absence,

Resignation(s), and New Hire(s).

2



Agenda
May 19, 2008
Page 2

I. Reports
1. Parent Opinion Surveys
2. Enrollment Projections
3. Curriculum Management Audit Update
4. Suspension Reduction Program Report

J. Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar
1. 2008 Graduation on Saturday, May 31, 2008 at Civic Auditorium – Millard North High School at 10

a.m., Millard South High School at 1:00 p.m., and Millard West High School at 4:00 p.m.
2. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, June 2, 2008, at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration

Center, 5606 South 147th Street
3. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, June 9, 2008 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration

Center, 5606 South 147th Street
4. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, June 16, 2008 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration

Center, 5606 South 147th Street
5. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, July 7, 2008 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration

Center, 5606 South 147th Street
6. New Teacher Breakfast on Monday, August 4, 2008 at 7:30 a.m. at Millard South High School
7. Strategic Planning on Monday, August 4, 2008, at 12:00 Noon at Ironwood Country Club on 127th &

Pacific
8. Fall Kick-Off Celebration on Friday, August 8, 2008 at 8:30 a.m. at Embassy Suites, 12520 Westport

Parkway
9. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, August 11, 2008 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
10. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, August 18, 2008 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration

Center, 5606 South 147th Street

K. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic. Please make sure
a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins.

L. Adjournment:

All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in a single motion.
Items may be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board member.

3



.BOARD OF EDUCATION
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS

OMAHA, NEBRASKA

BOARD MEETING STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER
7:00 P.M. 5606 SOUTH 147TH STREET

MAY 19, 2008
6:00 p.m. – PAYBAC RECEPTION

ADMINISTRATIVE MEMORANDUM
A. Call to Order

The Public Meeting Act is posted on the Wall and Available for Public Inspection

B. Pledge of Allegiance

C. Roll Call

D. Public Comments on agenda items - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda items
only. Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President prior to the meeting.

*E.1. Motion by , seconded by, ______________, to approve the Board of Education Minutes – May 5,
2008. (See enclosure.)

*E.2. Motion by , seconded by , to approve the bills. (See enclosure.)

*E.3. Motion by , seconded by , to receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File. (See
enclosure.)

E.4. Summary of Committee of the Whole Meeting – May 12, 2008

F.1. Showcase: PAYBAC Awards

F.2. Employees of the Month

F.3. Superintendent’s Comments

F.4. Board Comments/Announcements

F.5. Report from Student Representatives and Presentation of Plaques

G.1. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Policy 10001 – Site-Based Planning
and Management – Mini Magnets. (See enclosure.)

H.1. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve 2008 Graduates. (See enclosure.)

H.2. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Rule 10001.1 – Site-Based Planning
and Management – Mini-Magnets Development. (See enclosure.)

H.3 Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Rule 10001.2 – Site-Based Planning
and Management – Center Development: A Plan for Low Enrollment Buildings. (See enclosure.)

H.4 First Reading of Policy 4300 – Human Resources – Professional Growth/Inservice. (See enclosure.)

H.5. First Reading of Policy 6200 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Taught Curriculum – Instructional
Delivery. (See enclosure.)

4



H.6. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to reaffirm Policy 6700 – Curriculum,
Instruction, and Assessment – Co-Curricular Activities. (See enclosure.)

H.7. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to reaffirm Rule 6700.2 – Curriculum,
Instruction, and Assessment – Interscholastic Athletics and Activities – Approval Procedures and Criteria. (See
enclosure.)

H.8. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to reaffirm Policy 6700.4 – Curriculum,
Instruction, and Assessment – Extracurricular School Sponsored Clubs and Activities, and Interscholastic
Athletics and Activities – School Social Events. (See enclosure.)

H.9. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to reaffirm Rule 6700.5 – Curriculum,
Instruction, and Assessment – Extracurricular School Sponsored Clubs and Activi ties, and Interscholastic
Athletics and Activities – Intramural Athletics. (See enclosure.)

H.10. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve administrator for hire: Chad
Zimmerman, Assistant Principal at Millard North High School. (See enclosure.)

H.11. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Personnel Actions:
Amendment to Continuing Contract(s), Leave(s) of Absence, Resignation(s), and New Hire(s). (See
enclosure.)

I. Reports:
1. Parent Opinion Survey
2. Enrollment Projections
3. Curriculum Management Audit Update
4. Suspension Reduction Program Report

J. Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar
1. 2008 Graduation on Saturday, May 31, 2008 at Civic Auditorium – Millard North High School at 10 a.m.,

Millard South High School at 1:00 p.m., and Millard West High School at 4:00 p.m.
2. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, June 2, 2008, at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center,

5606 South 147th Street
3. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, June 9, 2008 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center,

5606 South 147th Street
4. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, June 16, 2008 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center,

5606 South 147th Street
5. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, July 7, 2008 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606

South 147th Street
6. New Teacher Breakfast on Monday, August 4, 2008 at 7:30 a.m. at Millard South High School
7. Strategic Planning on Monday, August 4, 2008, at 12:00 Noon at the Ironwood Country Club on 127th &

Pacific
8. Fall Kick-Off Celebration on Friday, August 8, 2008 at 8:30 a.m. at Embassy Suites, 12520 Westport

Parkway
9. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, August 11, 2008 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration

Center, 5606 South 147th Street
10. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, August 18, 2008 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center,

5606 South 147th Street

K. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic. Please make sure a
request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins.

L. Adjournment

All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in a single motion. Items
may be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board member.

5



MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO 17

A meeting was held of the Board of Education of the School District No. 17, in the County of Douglas in the State of
Nebraska. This meeting was convened in open and public session at 7:00 p.m., Monday, May 5, 2008, at the Don Stroh
Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street.

PRESENT: Jean Stothert, Brad Burwell, Mike Kennedy, Mike Pate, Dave Anderson and, Linda Poole

Notice of this meeting was given in advance thereof by publication in the Daily Record on, May 2, 2008; a copy of the
publication is being attached to these minutes. Notice of this meeting was given to all members of the Board of Education
and a copy of their Acknowledgment of Receipt of Notice and the agenda are attached to these minutes. Availability of
the agenda was communicated in advance notice and in the notice of the Board of Education of this meeting. All
proceedings hereafter shown were taken while the convened meeting was open to the attendance of the public.
--------------------------------------------------------------------------

At 7:00 p.m. Mrs. Stothert announced the Public meeting Act is posted on the wall and available for public inspection.
Mrs. Stothert asked everyone to say the Pledge of Allegiance.

Roll call was taken and all members were present.

Motion by Mike Kennedy, seconded by Linda Poole, to approve the Board of Education minutes of April 21, 2008,
Special Board of Education Minutes April 24, 2008, to approve the bills, and receive the Treasurer’s Report and place on
file, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye. Motion carried.

Showcase highlighted award winners in DECA, World Languages, Presidential Scholars, Skills USA, Computer Science,
Health Occupation Students of American (HOSA), and Forensics.

Superintendent’s Comments:

1. Millard Schools had three of the nine World Herald Scholars that were announced in the paper on Sunday.

2. Reminder of the Foundation Hall of Fame Banquet on Friday, May 9, 2008, the Employee Recognition dinner
will be held on Wednesday, May 14, 2008 at the Georgetowne Club, and Graduation will be on Saturday, May
31, 2008 with Millard North at 10 a.m., Millard South will be at 1:00 p.m., and Millard West will be at 4:00 p.m.
at the Civic Auditorium.

3. Transportation will be continued for another year between Reagan and Upchurch Elementary due to no sidewalks
in many of the subdivisions.

4. The metropolitan principals will be meeting at Millard West High School, and their guest speaker will be Senator
Raikes. Senator Raikes will speak on the Learning Community laws and how it will impact the schools.

5. The committee meeting agenda for Monday, May 12, 2008 will be on the budget. The program budgeting team
has met, and established the ranking.

Board Comments:

Mike Kennedy commented on the newspaper article about the amount of funds each school district received and he
thought that Millard was being punished for being fiscally responsible to its taxpayers by providing an education with the
least amount of dollars within the whole Learning Community.

Dave Anderson announced that he will be attending the Millard Business Association function. He also announced that
he will not be at the Board meeting on May 19th because of the music awards program at Millard South High School.

6



Board of Education Minutes
May 5, 2008
Page 2

Mr. Anderson also noted that Derek Collins, student representative from Millard North High School, was one of the
recipients of a Lion’s Club scholarship. Mr. Anderson offered his congratulation to Derek.

Brad Burwell was invited to attend a meeting with members of the State Board of Education to discuss the process to use
for the replacement for Commissioner Doug Christensen, who will be retiring. Mr. Burwell said the group advised the
members of the State Board of Education to take their time and get the right person, because it could be a little late to get
someone at this time. The State Board members said there were individuals who could be an interim Commissioner while
looking for a permanent one. This committee is scheduled to meet in three to four weeks again, and Mr. Burwell said he
would keep the Millard board informed as to the progress of the committee.

Linda Poole said she attended the MEA retirement dinner where over 800 years of experience will be retiring. Mrs. Poole
wished them all well.

Mrs. Poole said she may not be at the committee meeting if Millard West gets into the championship soccer game.

Derek Collins, student representative from Millard North High School, Jessica Lamb, student representative from Millard
South High School, and Erica Fennen, student representative from Millard West High School gave their reports on the
activities in academics and athletics at their respective schools.

Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Brad Burwell, to approve Job Description 2100.22 – Administrator Job Description -
Administrator for Special Education Programs and Compliance, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye. Motion
carried.

Motion by Brad Burwell, seconded by Linda Poole, to approve Job Description 2100.26 – Administrator Job Description -
Coordinator of Related Services and Young Adult Program, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye. Motion carried.

Motion by Dave Anderson, seconded by Linda Poole, to approve Rule 6700.1 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment
– Extracurricular School Sponsored Clubs and Activities – Approval Procedures and Criteria. Motion by Mike Pate,
seconded by Mike Kennedy, to amend the motion to include Rule 6700.6 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment –
Extracurricular School Sponsored Clubs and Activities and Interscholastic Athletics and Activities (Travel and Trips),
Rule 6700.7 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Extracurricular School Sponsored Clubs, Activities and
Interscholastic Athletics, and Activities (Travel and Trips) - Overnight Travel and Trips Guidelines - Middle Schools,
Rule 6700.8 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Extracurricular School Sponsored Clubs, Activities and
Interscholastic Athletics, and Activities (Travel and Trips) - Overnight Travel and Trips Guidelines – High Schools. Upon
roll call vote Brad Burwell, Jean Stothert, Linda Poole, Mike Pate, and Dave Anderson voted aye. Mike Kennedy was not
in attendance at the time of the vote. Motion carried. The motion on the amended motion all members voted aye. Motion
carried.

Mike Pate provided the first reading of Policy 10001 – Site-Based Planning and Management – Mini Magnets. This
policy will be on the next board agenda for approval.

Motion by Brad Burwell, seconded by Mike Kennedy, that approval be given to the contract documents for the Horizon
High School construction project, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye. Motion carried.

Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Brad Burwell, that the RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING A
LEASE-PURCHASE TRANSACTION WITH FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF OMAHA, THE PROCEEDS OF WHICH
WILL BE USED TO PAY THE COSTS OF ACQUIRING ONE OR MORE SITES AND ANY EXISTING BUILDINGS
THEREON TO PROVIDE FACILITIES FOR SUPPORT SERVICES FOR THE OPERATION OF THE DISTRICT
AND ITS PROPERTIES; APPROVING THE ISSUANCE, SALE AND DELIVERY OF NOT TO EXCEED $5,000,000
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION IN SUCH LEASE; FIXING IN PART AND

7





Millard Public Schools
May 19, 2008

9



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  May 19, 2008

Date: 5/14/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
AMERICAN EXPRESS011651290815 8,365.24 
BARCO MUNICIPAL PRODUCTS, INC.017900290817 109.80 
NATHAN BEERNINK136539290818 212.16 
BRAD BURWELL106110290819 515.68 
CHRISTOPHER COLLING107454290820 175.00 
EDUCATIONAL SERVICE UNIT #3037525290825 395.22 
HY-VEE INC133397290826 2,186.53 
HY-VEE INC132878290827 167.32 
HY-VEE INC049851290828 1,887.34 
HY-VEE INC049850290829 590.17 
JONI L JOHNSON135291290831 350.00 
MICHAEL J LONGACRE135754290832 106.08 
PATRICIA A MEEKER121126290834 299.06 
MILLARD BUSINESS ASSOCIATION133582290835 200.00 
MILLARD NORTH HIGH SCHOOL065438290836 317.50 
BRIAN L NELSON107732290838 425.00 
NORTH MIDDLE SCHOOL130091290840 23.69 
DONALD G PRIMMER136770290841 600.00 
LARRY D RIBBLE136036290843 61.17 
ROSENBAUM ELECTRIC INC079440290845 93.00 
STEPHEN W. VENTEICHER107354290851 375.00 
ANTHONY R WARD136617290853 99.82 
NATHAN BEERNINK136539290877 26.52 
BRIAN F BEGLEY107540290878 296.10 
JOHN V BRAMER135363290879 73.00 
CAMBRIDGE STRATEGIC SERVICES LLC136359290880 5,000.00 
CENTRAL MIDDLE SCHOOL065420290882 212.65 
ELK GROVE LODGING LLC136775290883 155.68 
CROSS CULTURAL DEVELOPMENTAL103136290884 385.25 
PATRICIA A CRUM109021290885 769.67 
DEFFENBAUGH INDUSTRIES107469290887 8,829.23 
ANGELA M DIEHM133261290888 175.00 
KATIE DINNING136555290889 132.60 
PARK UNIVERSITY ENTERPRISES INC073721290890 198.00 
TAMMY GEBHART106894290891 90.55 
GEOGRAPHIC EDUCATORS OF NEBRASKA136159290892 20.00 
HY-VEE INC133397290894 201.55 
HY-VEE INC049850290895 1,686.00 
KARCHER FLOOR CARE INC134194290896 1,341.45 
VAIL RESORTS INC136779290897 140.03 
DENNIS F KIMBERLIN132676290898 315.00 
LAIDLAW TRANSIT INC058755290900 100.00 
LAIDLAW TRANSIT INC058755290901 787.50 
BRIDGET LEWIS136722290902 182.00 
LOWE'S HOME CENTERS INC131397290904 768.67 
ARNO P NEBEN100337290906 12.50 

10



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  May 19, 2008

Date: 5/14/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
NEBRASKA AIR FILTER INC068334290907 179.57 
BRIAN L NELSON107732290908 187.50 
JANET PELSTER109831290911 65.00 
PETTY CASH/MILLARD NORTH071368290912 223.87 
SECURITY BENEFIT LIFE INS CO098765290914 953.70 
JEAN STOTHERT106606290915 127.77 
STORM THRONE134131290917 106.08 
STEPHEN W. VENTEICHER107354290918 525.00 
WESTLAKE ACE HARDWARE INC094245290920 645.60 
KATIE J WOODRICH135303290921 17.90 
FIRST NATIONAL BANK VISA106773290923 27,680.09 
ANDERSEN MIDDLE SCHOOL065425290925 50.00 
ATS MOBILE TELEPHONE CO INC010083290927 141.00 
DEBRA K BEAUDOIN130337290929 25.64 
LAURIE A BISHOP136782290930 84.96 
CENTRAL MIDDLE SCHOOL065420290932 1,310.00 
LISA L CLINARD136780290933 173.18 
SHARON R COMISAR-LANGDON022701290934 29.44 
CONNECTIVITY SOLUTIONS MFG INC133818290935 1,311.41 
CONOCOPHILLIPS133617290936 10,459.31 
COX COMMUNICATIONS INC108436290937 43,191.65 
CULLIGAN WATER CONDITIONING106893290938 61.51 
WILLIAM DAUGHTRIDGE136517290940 209.22 
DEX MEDIA EAST LLC109850290941 54.16 
RUTH A EHLER136122290944 13.87 
TARA R FABIAN134861290945 35.59 
FEDERAL EXPRESS040450290946 447.50 
AMY J FRIEDMAN041543290948 16.27 
GALAXY CABLE INC107025290949 2,575.50 
DONNA R HELVERING106386290951 63.54 
HOTSHOT DELIVERIES INC136703290953 1,200.00 
JENSEN TIRE COMPANY133037290954 45.00 
LISA A JENSEN135629290955 90.22 
AMANDA J JOHNSON131367290956 294.22 
CURTIS L JOHNSON136784290957 210.75 
BRANDI L KANNING134774290958 57.45 
JULIA L KOLANDER132571290959 47.00 
LAIDLAW TRANSIT INC058755290960 0.00 
HEIDI A LARSON136781290964 17.50 
TAMARA R MCCANN132893290966 218.16 
AMERICAN NATIONAL BANK133403290967 903.60 
KRISTA MORRISON136275290970 90.90 
NATIONAL BAND ASSOCIATION132698290971 45.00 
NCTM066671290972 208.00 
R KEITH NETH131083290973 100.31 
AMY NUNAMAKER134628290974 225.00 

11



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  May 19, 2008

Date: 5/14/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
ANNE M OETH050042290975 98.42 
OMAHA PERFORMING ARTS SOCIETY135792290976 39.00 
HEIDI T PENKE107783290978 12.00 
MICHAEL T QUINT136035290980 18.99 
LOREN E SCHNITTGRUND136396290984 500.00 
SCHOLASTIC INC082100290985 209.00 
CLAUDIA K SCHULTE082395290987 42.76 
SHERRY K SEIDL131719290989 342.37 
JODY L SEMPEK134189290990 21.75 
SHAR PRODUCTS COMPANY131078290991 34.85 
CAROLJEAN SHIRLEY136785290992 161.64 
DONNA K SLOSSON106743290993 147.53 
TOSHIBA AMERICA INFO SYS INC131446290994 15,728.97 
SCOTT E TOWNSLEY132619290995 24.90 
DONNA R TROMBLA136110290996 51.70 
UNITED PARCEL SERVICE090242290997 320.96 
WEEKLY READER CORPORATION093976290998 215.80 
BECKY S WEGNER093978290999 12.56 
RA POPP ENTERPRISES133119291000 57.00 
ROBIN L WIAR134072291001 55.00 
JULIE M WILLIAMS134846291002 96.90 
YELLOW TRANSPORTATION INC107538291003 2,790.93 
YOUNG & WHITE096200291004 21,240.60 
GENERAL BINDING CORPORATION044050291007 364.00 
HAPPY CAB COMPANY INC047853291008 7.55 
HEARTLAND FOUNDATION048475291010 16,875.00 
GREENWOOD PUBLISHING GROUP INC048517291011 179.00 
CINDY HOLLING136789291013 157.56 
HUSKER MIDWEST PRINTING101032291014 68.00 
LAIDLAW TRANSIT INC058755291015 139.07 
HEIDI JO NEUMANN136004291016 139.48 
ORIZON CPAS LLC132146291017 2,847.50 

197,173.46 Total for GENERAL FUND
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOL CLEARING ACCT13627921140 142.00 
ARAMARK13350221141 631,391.93 
CULLIGAN WATER CONDITIONING10689321142 18.49 

631,552.42 Total for FOOD SERVICE 
FUND

SIRSI CORPORATION133047290847 3,112.44 
CB RICHARD ELLIS / MEGA136661290922 25,000.00 
BAHR VERMEER HAECKER ARCHITECTS135245290928 10,380.59 
CONNECTIVITY SOLUTIONS MFG INC133818290935 13,463.49 
E & A CONSULTING GROUP INC133806290943 1,942.50 
LAMP RYNEARSON ASSOCIATES INC058775290961 5,847.04 
SCHEMMER ASSOCATES INC081880290983 1,000.00 

60,746.06 Total for SPECIAL BUILDING 
FUND

12



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  May 19, 2008

Date: 5/14/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
NEW VISION COMUNICATIONS INC134798290909 49,445.64 
A & D TECHNICAL SUPPLY CO INC010040290924 880.28 
APPLE COMPUTER, INC.012989290926 205,727.39 
BUILDING COMMISSIONING LLC133503290931 3,000.00 
DLR GROUP INC107232290942 4,389.27 
LAN-TEL COMMUNICATIONS INC136623290962 4,786.20 
LANOHA NURSERIES, INC.058800290963 3,025.00 
LEUCK'S INC136647290965 4,750.00 
PRAIRIE MECHANICAL CORP131835290979 1,875.00 
RAWSON & SONS ROOFING, INC.078420290981 1,525.00 
ROOFING SOLUTIONS INC134824290982 9,750.00 
SCHOOL SPECIALTY INC082350290986 702.36 
SECURITY EQUIPMENT INC082910290988 6,033.00 
AVG-CFM 204Q LLC136790291006 70,879.37 

366,768.51 Total for CONSTRUCTION 
FUND

JEWISH FEDERATION OF OMAHA INC134875290816 175.00 
BHAGYWANTI INC136769290821 684.25 
HY-VEE INC133397290826 64.54 
WILLIAM MARSH RICE UNIVERSITY135197290844 420.00 
UNIVERSITY OF IOWA131612290849 425.00 
UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN-MADISON134713290850 600.00 
NANCY SHARP WAGNER092734290852 700.00 
WINDSTAR LINES INC136011290854 1,363.16 
CARLETON COLLEGE132806290881 1,025.00 
HY-VEE INC133397290894 15.01 
STRATEGIC AIR & SPACE MUSEUM132315290916 302.50 
FIRST NATIONAL BANK VISA106773290923 4,486.92 
AMANDA G DANA136006290939 26.01 
ROSE FITCH136783290947 80.00 
BAILEY HEMPHILL135616290952 204.00 
MILLARD NORTH HIGH SCHOOL065438290968 30.00 
KENDALL A MORRISEY134787290969 127.51 
LYN E PAHLS133964290977 96.05 
YOUTH FRONTIERS INC135890291005 1,900.00 
BAILEY HEMPHILL135616291012 180.00 
HEIDI JO NEUMANN136004291016 165.14 

13,070.09 Total for GRANT FUND
COVENTRY HEALTH CARE OF NEBRASKA136587290822 112,779.73 
MUTUAL OF OMAHA COMPANIES099045290905 88,466.60 

201,246.33 Total for 
AMERICAN EXPRESS011651290815 300.00 
DARREL DRAPER107948290823 125.00 
DARREL DRAPER107948290824 125.00 
KATHLEEN THACKER135411290830 600.00 
JAYNE MACHOLAN130575290833 1,200.00 

13



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  May 19, 2008

Date: 5/14/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
CHRISTOPHER E MUESSIGMANN136771290837 270.00 
GAYLE NICOLL134629290839 144.00 
WENDI ANN REED136772290842 144.00 
PEGGY SCHMITZ132502290846 50.00 
ELIZABETH K STRUDTHOFF136167290848 216.00 
WAYNE GRUDLE130309290893 47.00 
MARY ANNE KUHR136778290899 2,527.00 
JIM PEABODY136041290910 80.00 
MICHAEL PUJADO136777290913 0.00 
COX COMMUNICATIONS INC108436290937 419.44 
WAYNE GRUDLE130309290950 162.72 
HAUFF SPORTING GOODS COMPANY048200291009 16.55 

6,426.71 Total for ACTIVITY FUND
MARY ANNE KUHR136778290899 -101.08 

-101.08 Total for 

1,476,882.50 Report Total               

14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71





Don Stroh Administration Center  5606 So. 147th Street  Omaha, NE 68137-2647  (402) 715-8200  (Fax) (402) 715-8409

May 14, 2008

TO: Board Members

FROM: Amy Friedman

RE: Employees of the Month

The Employees of the Month for May are Ellie Majkowski, language arts teacher at Andersen Middle
School and Becky Maschka, multi-categorical special education paraprofessional at Morton
Elementary.

AF:sp

MILLARD BOAR
Dave Anderson, Brad Burwell, Mike Kennedy, Mike Pate, L

73
D OF EDUCATION

inda Poole, Jean Stothert, Keith Lutz, Ed. D., Superintendent



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Second Reading of Policy 10,001

MEETING DATE: May 19, 2008

DEPARTMENT: Educational Services

TITLE AND
BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Second Reading of Policy 10,001: Mini-Magnets

ACTION DESIRED: Approve Policy

BACKGROUND: Policy 10,001 and Rule 10,001.1 were written to provide a
mechanism by which District Mini-Magnets could be created
and implemented. Rule 10,001.2 focuses on Center Schools
for low enrollment buildings.

RECOMMENDATIONS: Approve Policy

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: None

TIMELINE: Immediate implementation

RESPONSIBLE PERSON(S): Mark Feldhausen, Assoc. Supt.;
Carol Newton, Director of Elementary and Early

` Childhood Education

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL: ______________________
(Signature)

BOARD ACTION:

74

sphelps
Keith's signature



Site-Based Planning and Management 10001

Mini-Magnets

The Board of Education of the Millard Public Schools No. 17, supports the philosophy of alternative programs and
parental choice, henceforth called mini-magnets as called for in the District Strategic Plan. The criteria of a mini-
magnet addresses a specific unmet educational need that does not duplicate existing programs or methods already in
place and does not jeopardize current programs for the majority of students. The proposed mini-magnet does not put
undo stress on the District for sufficient staff, staff training, resources and facilities.

The philosophy of mini-magnet development shall be evident in the Millard School District through the opportunity
of personnel, parents, community members, and students when appropriate, to collaborate in the design and
implementation of (1) mission statement, (2) goals, (3) yearly developed activities, (4) curriculum selection, (5)
instructional methods, (6) staff selection, and (7) evaluation methods. Mini-magnets will abide within the District
policy and guidelines, District strategic plan, District assessments and outcomes, and function within the budget
constraints given.

While fully supporting these collaborative efforts, the Board recognizes its ultimate authority and responsibility for
decisions, which impact the direction of education in the Millard Schools.

This policy and related guidelines will be reviewed by the Board of Education on an annual basis.

Policy Adopted: February 16, 1998 Millard Public Schools
Omaha, NE

Reviewed: 5/12/08

75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Rule 10,001.1

MEETING DATE: May 19, 2008

DEPARTMENT: Educational Services

TITLE AND
BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Rule 10,001.1: Mini-Magnets

ACTION DESIRED: Approve Rule

BACKGROUND: Policy 10,001 and Rule 10,001.1 were written to provide a
mechanism by which District Mini-Magnets could be created
and implemented.

RECOMMENDATIONS: Approve Rule 10,001.1

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: None

TIMELINE: Immediate implementation

RESPONSIBLE PERSON(S): Mark Feldhausen, Assoc. Supt.;
Carol Newton, Director of Elementary and Early

` Childhood Education

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL: ______________________
(Signature)

BOARD ACTION:

92

sphelps
Keith's signature



Site-Based Planning and Management 10001.1

Mini-Magnet Development

Introduction:

The Board of Education of the Millard Public Schools supports the philosophy of mini-magnet programs as reflected
in this rule.

The Board believes that mini-magnet development can be achieved through the process of shared decision-making.
The process provides that certain decisions concerning mini-magnet development can be made at the program level,
through the stakeholders most directly involved with the program, and within the context of the District’s policies
and plans. The Board recognizes that shared decision-making provides the opportunity for staff, parents,
community members, and students, to collaborate in the District’s Strategic Plan and promote increased student
achievement through alternative educational processes.

While fully supporting these collaborative efforts, the Board recognizes its ultimate authority and responsibility for
decisions that impact the direction of education in the Millard Public Schools. The authority and responsibilities
delegated to the mini-magnet Development Task Force shall be in accordance with District policies and shall be
subject to the authority and responsibility of the Board of Education, the Superintendent and the administrator of the
mini-magnet or District unit or division which the task force represents.

Definitions:

Mini-Magnet is the broad term used to identify a District sponsored program that utilizes a specific curriculum,
classroom management and structure, and instructional practices that are significantly different from the regular Pre
K-12 Education Program, yet still embraces the District outcomes and assessments while attracting students from
across the District.

Mini-Magnet Proposal Development Committee is made up of interested stakeholders who participated in the
Phase 1: Identification of a Mini-Magnet Concept. To this committee will be added a designee of the
Superintendent and other interested parties. This committee will be responsible for the completion of Phase 2:
Preliminary Proposal Development that will be submitted to the Superintendent and Cabinet by the specified date.
The Proposal Development Committee understands that the proposed mini-magnet concept has not been approved
and no commitment has been made to approve the concept.

Mini-Magnet Development Task Force is made up of stakeholders from the program who plan collaboratively by
establishing their vision and mission, define the goals that shape the direction of the program, and develop the
curriculum, staff needs, and parent communication. The development task force shall include a District
administrator, parents, staff, business partners and students when appropriate. The development team will have
between 10 to 12 members. The total number of certified staff and the total number of parents shall be within one
of each other for the development team. Representatives other than District employees will be non-paid volunteers.
The development task force would be required to complete its work by May, so the staff and administrator could
prepare for the start-up of the program. The goal of the development task force would then be complete and this
task force would be dissolved.

Parameters for Task Force Meetings:
 All mini-magnet development task force meetings will be facilitated by a District administrator.
 All mini-magnet development task force meetings will be scheduled by the administrator of record for that

program.
 No mini-magnet development task force meeting will be conducted without a quorum of six members.
 A consensus decision-making process will be used by the development task force.
 The mini-magnet development task force’s work will conclude prior to program implementation.

93



Mini-Magnet Leadership Support will be provided by the District. The Superintendent, human resources
division, and the principal of the designated facility will identify the level of need for leadership support, the
qualifications of the staff person, and their job description. The leadership support staff person will be brought into
the planning process during Phase 3: Planning for Start-up.

Mini-Magnet Parent Education Group may meet up to four times each year as needed. The purpose of the parent
group will be to provide parents of children in the program an opportunity to learn more about the program, ask
questions about the program to program staff, and to raise funds to support specific program needs. There may be
parent officers if desired by the parents. Any activities or fund raising by the parent group cannot conflict with the
building PTO/PTA of which they are members. Fundraising will be by parents only, no children will be asked to
participate.

Building PTO/PTA will consist of parents from both all programs residing in the building. Officers may be from
either group, but no specific requirements of equal representation will be enforced. PTO/PTA sponsored activities
and fundraising will support the building in general and not be directed to any specific program needs.

Building Planning and Implementation Teams will be a proportional representation of both all programs housed
in the building. Parents and staff of each program will elect their own members. Building Planning and
Implementation Teams will be bound by Policy 10,000.

Consensus Method will be used by the Mini-Magnet Development Task Force in an affirming environment marked
by mutual support and respect. Consensus exists when participants whose support is needed to implement a
decision, agree with the decision and express a commitment to support it.

The process is based on trust and a belief in the strength of shared responsibility in decision-making. Participants
must be well informed and communicate effectively in order to make good decisions. Therefore, school decision
makers will use processes that include provisions for informed dialogue, decision, action and evaluation.
Participants in the process must engage in continuous communications with their constituents so that decisions will
reflect agreement within the mini-magnet community. Successful processes will allow for communications among
constituents so that decisions will reflect agreement within the mini-magnet community, not just within a particular
committee. Successful implementation shall also require regular oral and written communication among
individuals, District administration, and the school board.

If consensus cannot be achieved the administrator for that program may make the necessary interim decisions as
they continue to work for sufficient consensus. In the event the mini-magnet development task force is unable to
function effectively, the mini-magnet administrator, or three (3) task force members shall report the same to the
District Superintendent together with a detailed report of the issues and parts of disagreement where upon the
District Superintendent or his/her designee shall meet with the Development Task Force to resolve the issues. If the
issues cannot be resolved, the dispute shall be submitted to the Board of Education through the Superintendent for
resolution of the issue or issues.

Mini-Magnet Development Phases:

Phase 1: Identification of a Mini-Magnet Concept

The following information must be submitted to the Superintendent and presented to Cabinet for
consideration by October 1.

1) Identify the need, scope, purpose and description of the program.

2) Identify the goals of the program. Is the program consistent with the District strategic plan? Does the
program duplicate existing goals or methods already in place in the District? Does the program address
unmet needs in the District? Would the program jeopardize the majority of the students or District
program? What group of students is this program designed for?

3) Identify interest of potential students through parent surveys.

94



4) Secure signatures of program identification group.

Cabinet will apply the following criteria to the mini-magnet concept:

1) A philosophic predisposition exits in the community and is affirmed by the Board of Education that values
the concept of parent choice in education.

2) A proposed mini-magnet is consistent with the philosophy of the District and the legal requirements placed
upon the District.

3) A proposed mini-magnet does not duplicate existing goals or methods already in place in the District. The
proposed mini-magnet addresses previously unmet needs. These needs are well defined and capable of
being assessed.

4) The proposed mini-magnet does not stimulate a major political or values backlash such that the functioning
of the District for the majority of students would be jeopardized.

The Superintendent will meet with the mini-magnet concept developers during the next two-week period to
respond to the request. If the concept is accepted and allowed to move ahead into Phase 2: Preliminary
Proposal Development, a designee of the Superintendent will be assigned to work with the group to develop
and submit the proposal by March 1. The Superintendent will inform the Board of Education about the
mini-magnet concept.

Phase 2: Preliminary Proposal Development

A cross-section of teachers, parents or prospective students (when appropriate), administration, and community
member interested in the mini-magnet concept and involved in the proceeding steps will form the Proposal
Development Committee. The Superintendent’s designee will become a member of the committee.

Proposal Development Committee will compile the following information:

1) Expand on the need, scope, purpose and description of the program.

2) Expand the goals of the program.
*Identify how the program is consistent with the District strategic plan.
*Identify how the goals or methods of the program are different from those in existing programs.
*Identify the needs that this program will meet that do not currently exist in the District program.
*State why the program will not jeopardize the majority of the students or District program.

3) Develop a list of parents who are committed to enrolling their child(ren) in the program.

4) Identify the costs needed to start up the program and yearly reoccurring costs. Complete a cost-benefit
analysis of the program.

5) Identify the facility and classroom space needs for the program. Project over a three to five year program.

6) Prepare a time line for meeting the preliminary proposal deadline.

7) Identify a plan for how the program will be publicized.

8) Identify expectations of how parents will be involved in the program on an ongoing basis (volunteer hours,
parent booster club, etc.).

9) Identify how the mini-magnet program will work in collaboration with other programs sharing the same
facility (participation on joint building implementation team, joint PTO, etc.).

95



10) Submit preliminary proposal to Associate Superintendent of Educational Services for presentation to
Cabinet by March 1.

Cabinet will review the preliminary proposal based on the following feasibility indicators:

1) Sufficient qualified staff exist to implement the program as it is intended (administrative, teaching, aide,
support).

2) Sufficient money exists to secure qualified staff and materials to implement the program as it is intended
without undo pressure on the regular program.

3) Sufficient space requirements are available to assure that a safe and healthy learning environment without
undo disruption to other regular programs.

4) The overall expenditures of resources (money, staff and space) are comparable to expenditures for regular
programs. (Additional start-up costs may be required in the initial phases of implementation.)

5) The proposed mini-magnet does not place unwarranted or unwanted stress on the neighborhood concept of
education in Millard.

If the preliminary proposal is accepted by Cabinet, it will be submitted to the Millard Board of Education for
approval. If approved by the Board of Education, a program administrator will be assigned by the
Superintendent along with any other parameters deemed appropriate. The Superintendent, human resources
division, and the principal of the designated facility will identify the level of need for leadership support, the
qualifications of the staff person, and their job description. The leadership support designee will be brought
into the planning process sometime during Phase 3 - Planning for Start-up.

Phase 3: Planning for Start-up

The Development Task Force will be notified by May 1 and must have the following components developed
and presented to Cabinet by December 1. This date is critical for budget development, communication with
interested staff, parents, and students, and ordering and organizing for fall implementation. The final
months of January to May will be utilized for final planning and organization, ordering materials, hiring
staff, communicating with parents and District staff, and registering students.

1) The current Proposal Development Committee may be expanded if necessary and changed to the
Development Task Force. The job of this task force will be completed prior to program implementation;
therefore, the task force will be dissolved prior to program implementation.

2) An external facilitator will be assigned by the Superintendent to work with the mini-magnet development
task force to identify the mission, objectives for the program, and action steps for the objectives.

3) The mini-magnet development task force will meet on a regular basis (weekly, monthly) to develop the
curriculum and instructional program, a proposed budget, identify facility needs, student assessment
program, program evaluation, technology plan, support services plan, and other program components.

4) The administrator on the development task force will submit required reports as needed for District budget
planning process, facility location, obtaining materials, identification of staff, training of staff, publicize
program, registration of students, and other start-up needs of the program.

5) A budget for curriculum development, staff training and other initial start-up costs will be implemented.

6) A budget for classroom set-ups and other needs will be expended in the summer prior to fall
implementation.

96



7) An evaluation process to include evidence and criteria for making judgments about the program will be set
up with assistance from the Research and Evaluation department for the first five years of the program.
Possible questions might include:

1) What levels are the students achieving in District outcomes?
2) To what extent does the magnet school implement its program?
3) What is the breadth and depth of curriculum?
4) What instructional practices are used?
5) What is the per-student cost for the program?
6) What role does support services play in the program?
7) What are the demographics of the program?
8) What are the opinions/attitudes of parents, teachers, administrators, and students toward the

program?

Phase 4: Year One of Operation

1) It will be the responsibility of the assigned administrator to continue to refine program needs and work to
complete the mission and goals of the program. The mini-magnet leadership support person will be
assigned specific tasks by the administrator of the building and will be accountable to that person.

2) Communication between teachers, parents, community, and the District at-large is conducted.

3) The building administrator will be responsible to see that a proportional representation of both programs
are part of the building planning and implementation teams.

4) The building administrator will be responsible for providing conditions for a combined PTO of both all
program groups. Programs sponsored by PTO will support building projects that include the needs of both.

5) The building administrator will be responsible for organizing a parent education group for the mini-magnet
program to assist parents with learning about the program, communicating with others about the program,
to raise funds to support the program, to publish a program newsletter, etc. The Parent Education Group
shall meet on a quarterly basis or less periodically.

6) Curriculum development and staff training will continue as needed and be the responsibility of the
administrator in the building.

7) The program will be monitored yearly through District assessments, program assessments, and an
evaluation plan.

Phase 5: Five-Year Program Evaluation

A five-year evaluation will be completed by the Office of Planning, Evaluation, and Information Services
Planning and Evaluation Division at the end of the fifth year of program operation. If the program has met
program mission and goals, a cost-benefit analysis, and student achievement levels within the range of the
District, the program will be considered viable and continue. If the program has not satisfactorily met the
above indicators, the Superintendent and Board of Education will have the option to continue the program
with additional criteria or move to dissolve the program.

Parameters/Rules:

The following District parameters for the operation of mini-magnets must be met:

1. District student outcomes will be met.
2. District-level assessments will be utilized.
3. Class size will be comparable to other District programs.
4. Financial support will be comparable to the support for other District programs.

97



5. Any Millard student may register for the program, unless specific requirements are identified.
6. Staff evaluation shall be conducted using the District model.
7. Program evaluation will be on a regular and on-going basis.
8. A Parent Education Group will be organized for purposes of parent communication.
9. Transportation shall be provided by parents/guardians.

District Site Development Parent Ed
Level Planning Task Force Group

Team

Staff Evaluation Grants Instr. Strategies Parent education
Personnel Site Mission Curriculum Publicize
Policy Site Goals Prog Assessments Program Activities
Budget Allocation Site Plans Staff Selection Input Program Fund
Calendar Fund Raising Publicize raising
Maintenance PTO Program Mission Newsletter
Dist Assessment Site budget Program Goals
District Outcomes Site Activities Parent Involvement
Evaluation Planning Team
Food Service Implementation Team
Grad. Require
Facility
Hiring

18-MONTH TIME LINE

Month Date Task
1 Oct. 1 Submit mini-magnet concept to Cabinet

1 Oct. 1-14 Superintendent decision to move ahead. Designee assigned to Proposal
Development Committee

1-6 Oct. 14 - Proposal Development Committee develops
Mar. 1 Preliminary Proposal based on criteria.

6 Mar. 1 Submit Preliminary Proposal to Cabinet.

6-7 Mar. 1 - Superintendent, Cabinet and Board make
May 1 decisions about the mini-magnet concept.

8-14 May 1 - Development Task Force begins planning
Dec. 1 start-up. Specific information is developed and provided the

Superintendent for budget, facilities, communication, ordering, etc.
Submit initial information to Superintendent.

14-18 Dec. 1 - Final planning and organization for start-up.

18 May Development Task Force dissolves, program is implemented, combined
Planning/Implementation Team is elected, PTO organized, and Parent
Education Group formed.

References:

1. Basics of Charter Schools: A School Board Primer; Saks, J.; NSBA; An NSBA Council of Urban Boards
of Education Publication; 1997.

2. Charter Schools; Education Leaders Voice Their Views; Northwest Regional Educational Laboratory;
Spring 1997.

98



3. Charter Schools at the Crossroads; Proceedings of the Northwest Symposium for Charter School Policy;
Northwest Regional Educational Laboratory, November 1996.

4. How to Create Alternative, Magnet, and Charter Schools That Work; Barr, Robert & Parrett, William;
National Educational Service, 1997.

5. Magnet School Policy Studies and Evaluations; Waldrip, D., Marks, W., & Estes, N.; International
Research Institute on Educational Choice; 1993.

Rule Approved: February 16, 1998 Millard Public Schools
Omaha, NE

Reviewed: 5/12/08

99



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Rule 10,001.2

MEETING DATE: May 19, 2008

DEPARTMENT: Educational Services

TITLE AND
BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Rule 10,001.2—Center Development: A Plan for Low

Enrollment Buildings

ACTION DESIRED: Approve Rule

BACKGROUND: Rule 10,001.2 focuses on Center Schools for low enrollment
buildings.

RECOMMENDATIONS: Approve Rule 10,001.2

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: None

TIMELINE: Immediate implementation

RESPONSIBLE PERSON(S): Mark Feldhausen, Assoc. Supt.;
Carol Newton, Director of Elementary and Early

` Childhood Education

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL: ______________________
(Signature)

BOARD ACTION:

100

sphelps
Keith's signature



Site-Based Planning and Management

Center Development: A Plan for Low Enrollment Buildings 10001.2

I. Definitions

A. Center

1. A Center is a school with a program designed to attract enrollment through the use of a
district-funded and -directed program with a specific, specialized concentration
encompassing K-5, 6-8 and/or 9-12 in all areas and which is intended to attract interested
students.

2. Such proposed programs may originate from either a low enrollment building or the
District. Such programs may include, but are not limited to:
a. math/science and engineering
b. computer science and technology
c. visual, performing and communication arts
d. international studies and foreign language
e. year-round school

B. Center Development Team

1. A Center Development Team shall consist of individuals designated by the
Superintendent, who shall participate in the development of the building’s Center Plan.
a. The Center Development Team shall be appointed by the Superintendent or

designee and may include a district administrator, parents, building staff and,
when appropriate, business partners and students

b. Representatives other than district employees will be non-paid volunteers.

2. If building-generated, the Center Development Team is made up of stakeholders from the
building, including but not limited to the site-based planning team and/or the School
Improvement Team, who plan a Center collaboratively by:
a. establishing the vision and mission
b. defining the goals that shape the direction of the Center program
c. determining the curriculum for the Center
d. determining staff needs
e. determining parent communication.

3. If district-generated, the Center Development Team will be comprised of district
curriculum staff with building leadership designated by the Superintendent. This team
will:
a. establish the vision and mission
b. define the goals that shape the direction of the program
c. develop the curriculum
d. determine the staffing arrangement and
e. determine the parent communication.

4. The Development Team will be required to complete its work by Year One, December 1,
so the staff and administrator can prepare for the start-up of the program which is due by
Year Two, May 1. The goal of the Development Team would then be complete and this
team would be dissolved.

II. Introduction

A. The Board of Education of the Millard Public Schools supports the development of Centers as a
plan to attract students for low enrollment buildings.

B. Center development shall be achieved through the process of shared decision-making.

101



1. Decisions concerning Center development may be made at the building level, involving
those individuals most directly involved with the program, and at the District level within
the context of the District’s policies and plans.

2. Shared decision-making will provide the opportunity for staff, parents, community
members, and students to collaborate and promote increased student achievement.

C. The Board recognizes its ultimate authority and responsibility for decisions that impact the
direction of education in the Millard Public Schools.

1. The Superintendent shall inform low enrollment buildings of the opportunity for building
teams to plan for their future with this rule to guide their planning.

2. In the event that low enrollment buildings do not generate a plan for their future, the
Superintendent may direct the development of a plan for the future of low enrollment
buildings in accordance with this rule

3. If necessary, the Superintendent may replace and reassign the current principal and staff,
and assemble a building team to implement the District-generated plan.

D. The authority and responsibilities delegated to the Center Development Team shall be in
accordance with district policies and shall be subject to the authority and responsibility of the
Board of Education, the Superintendent and the building administrator.

III. Parameters for Center Development Team Meetings

A. All Center Development Team meetings will be facilitated by a building or district administrator.

B. A consensus decision-making process will be used by the Center Development Team.

IV. Center Leadership Support

A. Center leadership support will be provided by the District.

B. The Superintendent will identify the level of need for leadership support, the qualifications of the
staff, and their job descriptions. The leadership support staff person will be involved with the
planning process during Phase 2: Planning for Start-Up.

V. Center Parent Education Group

A. The purpose of the Center parent education group will be to provide parents an opportunity to
learn more about the program, ask questions about the program or program staff.

B. Center Parent Education Groups shall meet as needed.

VI. Center Development

A. Preliminary Phase: Center Proposal Development

1. On or before Year One, January 15, low enrollment schools:
a. will be identified by the Office of the Superintendent
b. will be informed of their status as low enrollment schools
c. will be alerted to the contents of Rule 10001.2, Center Development, timelines

and planning phases

2. On or before Year One, May 1, low enrollment schools shall declare their intention to the
Superintendent regarding Center Development of each school year, and indicate their
timeline for proceeding with Center Development. The team will provide the following
information:
a. The need, scope, purpose and description of the proposed Center program.
b. The goals of the program:

1) Identify how the program is consistent with the District strategic plan.

102



2) Identify how the goals or methods of the program are different from
those in existing programs.

3) Identify the needs that this program will meet that do not currently exist
in the District program.

4) Identify the staff development needs for the program.
5) State why the program will not jeopardize the majority of the students

or district program.
6) State what the attraction will be for increased enrollment at the low

enrollment school.

3. On or before Year One, June 1, low enrollment schools will receive a “status report”
from the Superintendent to inform them of the District’s expectations and intentions
pertaining to the timeline set forth for increasing the school’s enrollment.

B. Phase 1: Center Proposal Development

1. Center Development Teams at the building level shall develop the proposal of the
building’s Center Plan. The Superintendent or designee will become a member of the
committee. The following information shall be submitted to the Superintendent on or
before Year One, December 1:

a. refined statement of need, scope and goals based on the Superintendent’s
response

b. interest of potential students through district-wide data
c. signatures of Center Development Team
d. identify the facility and classroom space needs for the program and the space

available within the school to accommodate the program. Project use of building
space over a three to five year time period.

e. The administrator on the Center Development Team will submit required reports
for an Implementation Plan (Phase-in over multiple years, if necessary) for:
1) district budget planning process
2) evidence of sufficient enrollment
3) facility needs
4) obtaining materials
5) identification of staff
6) training of staff
7) publicizing and marketing the program to the identified target market
8) registration of students
9) timeline, and
10) other start-up needs of the program.

f. A budget for curriculum development, staff training and other initial start-up
costs will be implemented.

g. A budget for classroom set-ups and other needs will be expended in the summer
prior to fall implementation

h. A cost-benefit analysis will be conducted.

C. The Superintendent and/or designee shall review the Center Plan to evaluate and determine that:

1. The Center concept being proposed is a significantly different emphasis with a specific
specialized concentration encompassing one of the levels K-5, 6-8 or 9-12 and designed
to attract students to the school with low enrollment.

2. A proposed Center is consistent with the parameters of the strategic plan, the philosophy
of the District and the legal requirements placed upon the District.

3. The proposed Center addresses previously unmet needs. These needs are defined and
capable of being assessed.

4. The proposed Center does not stimulate a major political or values backlash such that the
functioning of the District for the majority of students would be jeopardized.

5. Sufficient qualified staff exist to implement the program as it is intended (administrative,
teaching, paraprofessional, support).

103



6. Sufficient money exists to secure qualified staff and materials to implement the program
as it is intended without undo pressure on the regular programs of the District or building.

7. Sufficient space requirements are available.
8. The overall expenditures of resources (money, staff and space) are comparable to

expenditures for regular programs. (Additional start-up costs may be required in the
initial phases of implementation.)

9. The benefits outweigh the costs; i.e., the project survives a cost-benefit analysis.

D. The Superintendent will report on the Center proposal to the Board of Education.

1. The Center Development Team will be notified on or before Year Two, January 15 as to
the proposal’s disposition.

2. The minimum number of students necessary to implement the program will be
determined by the Superintendent and communicated to the low enrollment school.

E. Phase 2: Planning for Start-Up. The following components shall be developed and presented to
the Superintendent on or before Year Two, May 1.

1. Center Development Team members will:
a. determine the curriculum and instructional program
b. implement staff development
c. organize and modify the facility
d. develop a support services plan, and other program components.

2. Establish enrollment procedures that follow these priorities:
a. currently enrolled students
b. siblings of currently enrolled students
c. within-district transfer students
d. option enrollment students
e. lottery will be utilized at any of the steps when necessary

3. An annual evaluation process to include evidence and criteria for making judgments and
recommendations about the program will be set up with assistance from the Office of
Planning, Evaluation, and Information Services Research and Evaluation department.
Possible questions might include:

a. Has the enrollment of the school increased?
b. What levels are the students achieving in district outcomes?
c. To what extent does the Center school implement its program?
d. What is the breadth and depth of curriculum?
e. What instructional practices are used?
f. What is the per-student cost for the program?
g. What role does support services play in the program?
h. What are the demographics of the program?
i. What are the opinions/attitudes of parents, teachers, administrators, and students

toward the program?

F. Phase 3: Two-Three Year Implementation

1. The building administrator shall continue to refine program needs and work to complete
the mission and goals of the program.

2. Communication between teachers, parents, community, and the District at-large shall
continue as needed.

3. Curriculum development and staff training will continue as needed and be the
responsibility of the building principal.

4. If, after one year, sufficient enrollment is not achieved, the District may alter, amend or
terminate the program.

VII. The following district parameters for the operation of Centers must be met:

104



A. Enrollment is increasing toward the Superintendent’s goal for full building utilization.
B. District student outcomes will be met.
C. District-level assessments will be utilized.
D. Class size will be comparable to other district programs.
E. Financial support will be comparable to the support for other district programs.
F. Staff evaluation shall be conducted using the District model.
G. Program evaluation will be on a regular and ongoing basis.
H. Transportation shall be provided by parents/guardians.

Timeline for Center Development

Year 1 January 15 Identify low enrollment schools
Year 1 May 1 Low enrollment schools provide preliminary proposals and timeline for proceeding
Year 1 June 1 Low enrollment schools receive a “status report:”
Year 1 July-August Add to site plan
Year 1 December 1 Center Proposal presented to Cabinet - Phase I: Center Proposal Development
Year 2 January 15 Cabinet response and Superintendent report to the Board
Year 2 January 15 Superintendent notifies low enrollment school of acceptance, rejection, modification
Year 2 May 1 Phase 2: Planning for Start-Up completed and presented to Cabinet
Year 2 August Implementation begins

Adopted: June 19, 2000 Millard Public Schools
Omaha, Nebraska

Reviewed: 5/12/08

105



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

Agenda Item: Board Policy Human Resources 4300 and Rule 4300.1

Meeting Date: May 19, 2008

Department Human Resources

Title and Brief
Description: Human Resources Policy 4300 and Rule 4300.1

Action Desired: Approval

Background: This Policy and the Rules have been revised for your approval
and were reviewed by the Cabinet and Legal Counsel.

Options/Alternatives
Considered: Leave unchanged, delete, or revise

Recommendations: Approval upon second reading

Strategic Plan
Reference: N/A

Implications of
Adoption/Rejection: N/A

Timeline: N/A

Responsible
Persons: Dr. Kirby Eltiste/Chad Meisgeier

Superintendent’s Signature: ______________________________________________

106

sphelps
Keith's signature



Category: Human Resources
Policy: Professional Growth/Inservice 4300

Each certified certificated staff member is expected to be continuously involved in a program of professional
growth to maintain and improve performance and proficiency.

The District will provide appropriate inservice activities and professional growth programs to assist staff members
in their professional development.

Professional growth and inservice programs are to be continuously evaluated in order to determine the greatest
possible educational benefits are being achieved.

Related Rule: 4300.1

Legal Reference: Neb. Rev. Statutes §79-830; Title 92, Nebraska Administrative Code, Chapter 10

Date of Adoption: October 7, 1974

Date of Revision: December 1, 1997; June 2, 2003; May ____, 2008

107

http://www.mpsomaha.org/mps/index.cfm?action=309&id=447&pid=224


Category: Human Resources
Policy: Professional Growth/Inservice
Rule: Professional Growth 4300.1

Rules and Regulations for Purposes of Continued Employment

Professional Growth Period

Nebraska State Law allows the Ddistrict to amend or terminate the contract of a permanent certificated employee
for failing to give evidence of professional growth as required in section by Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-830. Every six
years permanent certificated employees shall give evidence of professional growth. Six semester hours of college
credit shall be accepted as evidence of professional growth, or in the alternative, such other professional growth
activities as are approved by the Board. Each permanent certificated employee’s six-year period will commence on
September 1 of the year coinciding with permanent certification status and on September 1 every six years
thereafter.

Professional Growth Activities

Professional growth activities in connection with Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-830 shall consist of the professional work
approved by the Boardor activities listed hereafter which contribute to professional growth. The conditions and
limitations pertaining to the performance and acceptance of such activities are subject to review and change by
resolution of the Board of Education. Credit for engaging in a newly approved activity shall be allowed only for work
done after the date of approval of the activity unless the Board provides otherwise. Prior to September 1, 2000,
unless otherwise provided by the office of the Superintendent, all professional growth activity shall be conducted
on the employee's own time and at his or her own expense. Where allowed by law, credit granted for any type of
activity may be limited for each individual during the individual's professional growth period. This is done in order to
encourage a variety of professional growth activities for each individual.

Approval of Professional Growth Credit

Except for professional growth courses and activities used to meet the requirements of Nebraska State Law, and
inservice activities offered by the District, each professional growth activity staff development activity sponsored by
the District or to be undertaken by an employee for purposes of salary advancement must be pre-approved by the
office of the Superintendent or Superintendent’s designee prior to engaging in the activity. Approval should be
sought by submitting an application for professional growth credit which is signed by the immediate supervisor.

Credit Towards Professional Growth

Effective September 1, 2000, the following activities shall be evidence of professional growth in the amounts
designated.

I. College credit earned in accredited colleges - 1 professional growth point per semester hour. Applicants
must submit an official transcript from the Registrar showing the credit has been earned. These
transcripts will be placed in the personnel file. Credit in this category cannot be limited.

II. Professional growth courses and inservice offerings conducted by the Millard Public Schools during
normal duty hours or outside normally assigned duty hours. Each 1 hour of classroom instruction shall
equal 0.1 (one tenth) of one professional growth point. Each course instructor shall submit a list of
participants who have successfully completed the course to the Director of Staff Development.

The following activities shall be evidence of professional growth; provided, however, the activity is completed prior
to September 1, 2000:

College credit earned in accredited colleges - 1 point per semester hour. Applicants must submit an official
transcript from the Registrar showing the credit has been earned. These transcripts will be placed in the personnel
file. Credit in this category cannot be limited.

108



Auditing college or university courses when the courses have a direct relationship to the applicant's assignment - 1
point per semester hour.

Professional growth courses conducted by the Millard Public Schools - 1 point for 8-10 hours of classroom
instruction. Instructor of the class will submit a list of participants who have successfully completed the course.

Seminars, clinics, conferences, conventions and workshops directly related to the employee's assignment - 1/2
credit for each full day of attendance. In order to receive credit, attendance must be on the employee's time or at
the employee's expense. The maximum amount of credit any one individual can receive during any six-year
professional growth period is four (4) points.

Published articles and books - One (1) point for each article published in a professional educational journal. One-
half (1/2) point for each article published in a professional educational newsletter. One (1) point for educational
journal editing (maximum of 1 point per year). One (1) to two (2) points for each book, depending upon the length
and nature of the book. The maximum amount of credit any one individual can receive during any six-year
professional growth period is two (2) points.

Professional work directed by recognized professional educational organizations. Acceptable work may include:
serving as an officer or on a committee. Service to local district and/or buildings will not earn professional growth
points, except that each employee serving on the District Strategic Planning Committee shall receive one (1) point.
The maximum amount of credit any one individual can receive during any six-year professional growth period is
two (2) points.

Educational travel - professional growth credit under this classification may be allowed under one of two
categories:

Sponsored tours with academic credit - educational travel to be acceptable under this section must be under the
direction of an accredited college or university which grants college credit. The number of professional growth
points allowed are described under "College Credit." Credit in this category cannot be limited.

III. Tours without academic credit and/or independent travel must have prior approval by the office of the
Superintendent and shall be evaluated on the basis of educational worth. In order for tentative credit to
be allowed for travel, the places visited must be shown to have value related to the assignment of the
applicant. A report of how the travel experience will be integrated into the classroom activity or
assignment must be submitted to the office of the Superintendent with the request for approval.
Individuals may be granted a maximum of two professional growth credit points for travel during each six-
year professional growth period.

Final approval of credit for independent travel will be granted by the office of the Superintendent upon
receipt of proof of educational worth. This proof may take the form of, but is not limited to, any of the
following: 1. Preparation of the materials to be used in a unit of instruction. 2. Display, exhibit of learning
center prepared for instructional use. 3. Pictorial description of the trip with accompanying text. 4. Other
forms of report may be accepted which show clear evidence of educational worth.

Final approval of credit for independent travel will be granted by the office of the Superintendent upon
receipt of proof of educational worth. This proof may take the form of, but is not limited to, any of the
following: 1. Preparation of the materials to be used in a unit of instruction. 2. Display, exhibit of learning
center prepared for instructional use. 3. Pictorial description of the trip with accompanying text. 4. Other
forms of report may be accepted which show clear evidence of educational worth.

I. One (1) credit will be granted to a teacher who serves as a cooperating teacher as assigned by the
Director of Personnel. Credit will be granted for each assignment. One (1) credit will be granted to each
principal or supervisor for every five student teachers place in his or her building or program. The
administrator must provide supervision, in-service and formal observation/evaluation of the student
teachers. Notice of credit earned will be provided by the Director of Personnel. The maximum amount of
credit any one individual can receive during any six-year professional growth period is two (2) points.

Appeal

109



Staff members may appeal decisions under this Rule to the Associate Superintendent for Human Resources.

Related Policy: 4300

Legal Reference: Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-830

Date of Adoption: October 7, 1974

Date of Revision: February 20, 1984; July 2, 1990; September 7, 1993; November 18, 1996; November 17, 1999;
May _____, 2008

110

http://www.mpsomaha.org/mps/index.cfm?action=309&id=447&pid=223


AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Policy 6200 & Rule 6200.1: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment
Taught Curriculum: Instructional Delivery

MEETING DATE: First Reading: May 19, 2008
Second Reading and Approval: June 2, 2008

DEPARTMENT: Educational Services

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Policy 6200 & Rule 6200.1: Curriculum,
Instruction, and Assessment
Taught Curriculum: Instructional Delivery

ACTION DESIRED: APPROVAL X DISCUSSION INFORMATION ONLY _

BACKGROUND: In the process of revising the Millard Instructional Model over the past
few years, the title of the Millard Instructional Model was omitted. These corrections add the
title and provide explanation. These corrections also clarify alignment of policies and
procedures and are in keeping with the goals of the Curriculum Management Audit.

RECOMMENDATIONS: __X__ Approve recommended changes.

OPTIONS & ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: Leave the policy and rule unchanged.

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: NA

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTION: NA

PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE: Dr. Mark Feldhausen & Dr. Kim Saum-Mills

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL: _________________________________________

BOARD ACTION:

111

sphelps
Keith's signature



Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment

Taught Curriculum--Instructional Delivery 6200

In order to enable the alignment of the taught curriculum with the written curriculum, the Millard
Public Schools shall identify clearly defined standards for the District’s staff. These standards are
referred to as “Practices that Promote Successful Student Learning” and include the following:
are included in The Millard Instructional Model. The five Domains of the Millard Instructional
Model are:

I. Planning

II. Instruction

III. Assessment

IV. Learning Environment

V. Professional Responsibilities

The “Practices that Promote Successful Student Learning” of the Millard Instructional Model
have been incorporated into the teacher evaluation process and used by administrators, in
conjunction with curriculum frameworks and guides, to monitor the taught curriculum.

Related Policies and Rules: 4160

Policy Adopted: May 3, 1999 Millard Public Schools
Reaffirmed: May 19, 2003 Omaha, Nebraska
Revised: October 2, 2006; June 2, 2008

112



Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment

Taught Curriculum: Instructional Delivery 6200.1

Within each domain of the Millard Instructional Model are standards referred to as “Practices
that Promote Successful Student Learning.” The domains and standards are:

Domain I: Planning
What will students know and be able to do? How will students learn it? How do we know
students learn it? What happens if students do not learn it or already know it?

I. Students succeed because teachers plan with individual learning results in mind.

A. The teacher utilizes the Millard Educational Program in planning essential learning
outcomes and instructional objectives in each area of study.
1. Written plans address required MEP curricular outcomes, state and national

standards.
2. Daily and weekly lessons are designed backwards from the unit objectives.

B. Individualized assessment data are used to determine learning objectives for each
student.
1. Standardized and essential learner outcome results guide planning.
2. Transition data from prior grades is included in planning.
3. Unit/lesson formative and summative assessments determine next steps.

C. Students are appropriately involved in teacher planning decisions.
1. Student needs and interests are utilized in planning work that is challenging and

differentiated.
2. Students participate in developmentally appropriate goal setting.
3. Students understand learning objectives, expected outcomes, assessments and the

relevance of the content study.
4. Students are motivated to be actively engaged as a result of involvement in

planning.

D. The teacher utilizes effective principles of learning in planning the unit and lessons.
1. The teacher identifies desired results in terms of student learning.
2. The teacher identifies unit goals, essential questions, enduring understandings, and

key knowledge and skills.
3. The teacher defines evidence of learning, including performance tasks and rubrics.
4. The teacher provides time and instruction to promote student self-assessment.
5. The teacher designs instructional strategies and learning experiences needed to

achieve the unit goal.
6. The teacher designs activities to motivate students to learn.
7. The teacher uses appropriate anticipatory set and closure to introduce and

summarize daily and unit learning.
8. The teacher provides opportunities for students to rehearse, rethink, revise and

refine their work based upon timely feedback.

113



9. The teacher provides opportunities for students to evaluate their work and set future
goals.

10. The teacher designs flexible lessons to meet the interests and learning styles of each
student.

Domain 2: Instruction
How will students learn it? What happens if student do not learn it or already know it?

II. Students achieve desired learning results from effective participation in well-designed and
executed units and lessons.

A. Students understand daily, weekly and unit learning goals and objectives.
1. The teacher designs and shares daily learning objectives for student reference.
2. Instructional strategies and learning activities correlate to the achievement of the

stated objective.
3. Students understand the relevance and expectations inherent in achieving

objectives.

B. Students are “hooked into learning” by appropriate anticipatory sets and effective
motivational strategies.
1. The teacher leads students to review past learning as a connection to current

lessons.
2. The teacher uses the appropriate level of concern and feeling tone to encourage

students to participate in the lesson.
3. The teacher plans activities to generate student interest in the learning.
4. The teacher provides knowledge of results of learning to guide student efforts.
5. The teacher designs lessons to motivate students intrinsically and extrinsically as

needed.

C. Students are actively engaged during the full instructional period.
1. The teacher designs the start of each class as prime time for learning.
2. The teacher uses sponge activities, anticipatory sets and shared objectives to focus

students.

D. Students learn as a result of effective teacher input and modeling.
1. The teacher selects and organizes basic information so students have a foundation

of concepts and generalizations on which to increase understanding.
2. The teacher organizes instruction so students understand and see the relationship of

the parts to the whole.
3. The teacher uses modeling to help students understand.
4. The teacher uses visuals and/or technology to enhance learning.
5. The teacher communicates clearly using precise language and acceptable oral

expression.

E. Student thinking is facilitated by teacher questioning techniques.
1. Teacher uses questions that are open-ended.
2. Teacher uses varying levels of questioning, inquiry, or reflection that range from

concrete to abstract.

114



3. Teacher uses questions that require both lower order and higher order thinking
skills.

4. Teacher uses wait time appropriately.
5. Teacher reinforces, dignifies, and builds on student responses.
6. Teacher clarifies or rephrases questions and responses when necessary.

F. Students are actively engaged in their own learning.
1. Students ask relevant questions.
2. Students actively listen.
3. Students exchange and build on one another’s ideas.
4. Students initiate exploration of ideas.

G. Preferred student learning styles and effective pedagogy are integral components of
instruction.
1. The teacher uses effective instructional strategies, including the following (from

Marzano’s work):
a. Comparing and contrasting
b. Summarizing and note taking
c. Reinforcing efforts and providing recognition
d. Designing appropriate homework and practice
e. Providing and encouraging non-linguistic representations of key points
f. Cooperative learning
g. Setting goals and providing feedback
h. Generating and testing hypotheses
i. Using cues, questions and advance organizers.

H. Student success results from ongoing checking for understanding and guided practice
that incorporate planning, instruction and assessment in a continuous learning loop.
1. Pre-assessments indicate knowledge transfer from past learning by each student.
2. Students have opportunity to demonstrate knowledge as teachers check for

understanding during instruction.
3. Instruction is monitored and adjusted continually based on student demonstrations

of knowledge and understanding.

I. High-quality practice tasks for students are motivating so that learning is engaging and
meaningful.
1. Students are actively engaged in meaningful guided practice.
2. Varied types of responses allow students to demonstrate understanding after initial

teacher-guided practice.
3. Guided practice is short in duration and includes smaller chunks of content.
4. Students exert intense effort in their intent to learn.
5. Students receive immediate formative feedback.
6. As practice progresses, teachers include students as models.
7. Students are guided to effective independent practice.
8. Type and amount of practice is differentiated for each student.

a. Initial independent practice is formative in nature.
b. Independent practice is engaging and challenging.

9. Students receive timely formative feedback from the teacher.

115



J. Students are given opportunities to use technology as a tool in learning.
1. The teacher uses technology that is appropriate to the task or instruction.
2. Students have sufficient access to and training in appropriate technology.

III. Students are given many opportunities to learn the prescribed curriculum of the Millard
Education Program.

A. Intervention for remediation is immediate and ongoing.

B. Opportunities for differentiated activities to challenge and interest each student are
provided to achieve optimum learning.

IV. Students develop the capacity to understand and apply knowledge in meaningful ways.

A. Students are helped to link new learning to past learning so that transfer will occur.
1. New learning is “hooked” to past learning.
2. Critical attributes of the content to be learned are identified.
3. Students learn to “tie it all together” as they combine past and new knowledge.
4. Students learn to apply knowledge to new situations.

B. Students acquire skills to allow them to function productively and independently of
direct teacher supervision.
1. Differentiated opportunities for learning exist.
2. The class environment is designed for student independence.

Domain 3: Assessment
How do we know students learn it?

V. Student progress is continually monitored, and teaching is adjusted to optimize individual
learning.

A. Effective assessment practices allow students to demonstrate learning and allow
teachers to diagnose difficulties.

B. Pre-assessment data is used to set goals and objectives.

C. Assessment data during instruction is used to monitor understanding and adjust
instruction.

D. Technology resources support assessment of student learning.

VI. Students who are not meeting individual learning goals are supported by proactive
intervention.

A. Effective intervention plans are designed according to district guidelines.
1. The intervention focuses on the students’ individual learning needs.
2. A pyramid of interventions provides increasing amounts of support.

116



B. Students, parents, teachers and administrators implement an effective intervention plan.
1. Educational professionals work collaboratively to achieve results.
2. The teacher and other educational professionals provide flexible time for the student

to achieve results.
3. The intervention focuses on problem solving.
4. The intervention fosters student responsibility, accountability, and independence.

C. Intervention plans are monitored to assure their effectiveness.

VII. Student grades reflect evidence of learning.

A. Grades are fair, consistent, timely and clearly reported to students and parents.
1. Reports differentiate between the formative and summative assessment categories.
2. Students have assessment choices.
3. Students have ample opportunity to demonstrate achievement.
4. Students are accountable for their work.
5. Teachers post grades in a timely and accurate manner.
6. Teachers update reports as students improve achievement.
7. Students have several opportunities (method and number) to demonstrate mastery.
8. The teacher provides quality assessments.
9. The teacher accurately records evidence of student need and achievement.

B. Grading procedures of teachers are based on student achievement of performance
standards.
1. Grades relate directly to identified learning goals.
2. Performance standards are used to determine grades.

C. Student involvement in grading includes understanding of grade determination and
responsible communication with teachers and parents regarding progress.
1. Feedback is given separately for formative assessments.
2. Grades relate directly to individual student achievement through summative

assessments.

Domain 4: Learning Environment
How will students learn it? What happens if students do not learn it or already know it?

VIII. Students are engaged in a positive, productive environment established by the teacher.

A. A supportive culture for successful learning is evident.
1. Students have ongoing feedback to know how they are progressing.
2. Teacher takes personal interest in and knows student achievement and learning

styles.
3. Students are assisted in self responsibility and self monitoring.
4. Teacher-student relationship is appropriate.

B. Students know and follow the procedures for the class.
1. Beginning of day and period procedures are routine and logical.

117



2. Procedures for transitions focus student attention and minimize interruptions.
3. Learning materials, support equipment and technology are used efficiently.
4. Effective procedures are used to present information, guide group work, and

facilitate independent practice and teacher-led activities.
5. Students are involved in the establishment of rules and procedures.

C. Physical space is safe and organized for learning.
1. Safety procedures are defined and visible for student reference.
2. The learning environment is organized to facilitate learning.
3. Time on learning is maximized as a result of good organization of the learning

environment.

D. Students and teachers share a mutual rapport and respect.
1. An appropriate level of teacher control is in place.
2. Students feel the teacher knows and takes personal interest in them.
3. The tone between teacher and student is pleasant and appropriate.
4. The teacher and students celebrate success.
5. Students participate actively in the learning activities.
6. The teacher designs activities to develop appropriate level of concern.

a. The teacher is highly visible to all students in the setting.
b. The teacher uses proximity to motivate students.
c. Questioning techniques encourage all students to participate.
d. The teacher demonstrates the appropriate use of humor.
e. The teacher demonstrates caring for each individual.

IX. Student behavior expectations that comply with Millard policy are clearly taught and
effectively implemented.

A. Students and teacher establish behavior guidelines appropriate for the developmental
level of student and classroom setting.
1. Appropriate limits for unacceptable behavior and resulting consequences are

established and followed.
2. Acceptable behavior is acknowledged and reinforced.

B. Students understand and follow established behavior guidelines.
1. Bullying or exclusion is not tolerated.
2. Teacher anticipates problems and reacts immediately.
3. Effective procedures for record keeping are followed.

X. Students are expected to meet challenging and differentiated learning goals.

A. Goals are set at least annually.

B. Students understand and are actively involved in their personal progress.
1. Assessment reports provide appropriate information to support the student.
2. Student/parent/teacher conferences and communications focus on individual student

learning and achievement.
3. Students are involved in self reflection about their learning.

118



4. Learning goals are reviewed and revised as appropriate.

C. Goals push students toward continued growth.

Domain 5: Professional Responsibilities

XI. Teaching professionals initiate meaningful professional growth and contribute to school
and district improvement.

A. Teaching professionals pursue professional development to improve instruction.
1. Teaching professionals apply professional development growth experiences to

improve content knowledge and pedagogical skill.
2. Teaching professionals review student data, critically examine their teaching, and

collaborate with colleagues to increase student achievement.
3. Teaching professionals systematically reflect upon their own teaching practice and

learn from experience.

B. Teaching professionals assume responsibility for school and district improvement.
1. Teaching professionals work cooperatively to identify areas where school and

district programs need to be strengthened.
2. Teaching professionals participate in the implementation of improvement plans.

XII. Teaching professionals perform school-related responsibilities.

A. Teaching professionals comply with rules and regulations to provide a safe and orderly
school environment.
1. Teaching professionals carry out school related duties by adhering to established

laws, policies, rules, and regulations.
2. Teaching professionals adhere to the Professional Code of Ethics (Board Policy

4155).

B. Teaching professionals contribute to a positive school climate.
1. Teaching professionals foster healthy relationships with others.
2. Teaching professionals demonstrate enthusiasm for their profession and express

concerns in a constructive manner.
3. Teaching professionals are involved in school activities to enrich the school

learning environment.

C. Teaching professionals initiate parental involvement and support.
1. Teaching professionals clearly communicate the objectives and expectations of the

course and/or grade level to students and parents to engage families in the
instructional program.

2. Teaching professionals accurately maintain student records and effectively
communicate student progress in a variety of methods to students and parents.

D. Teaching professionals use a variety of educational tools, including technology, to
enhance professional practice.
1. Teaching professionals apply technology to increase productivity.

119



2. Teaching professionals continually evaluate professional practice regarding the use
of technology in support of student learning.

3. Teaching professionals model an understanding of the social, ethical, legal, and
human issues surrounding the use of technology.

Related Policy: 6200

Legal Reference: §79-866; 92 NAC 27

Date of Adoption: May 3, 1999 Millard Public Schools
Revised: July 16, 2001; May 19, 2003; October 2, 2006 Omaha NE
May 21, 2007; June 2, 2008

120



Enclosure
May 19, 2008

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Reaffirmation of Policy 6700; Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment; Co-curricular Activities

Reaffirmation of Rule 6700.2; Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment; Interscholastic Athletics
and Activities - Approval Procedures and Criteria

Reaffirmation of Rule 6700.4; Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment; Extracurricular School
Sponsored Clubs and Activities and Interscholastic Athletics and Activities - School Social
Events

Reaffirmation of Rule 6700.5; Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment; Extracurricular School
Sponsored Clubs and Activities and Interscholastic Athletics and Activities - Intramural Athletics

MEETING DATE: Monday, May 19, 2008

DEPARTMENT: Athletics and Activities

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Reaffirmation of Policy 6700. To correctly state the legal reference
number. No changes to the policy.

Reaffirmation of Rule 6700.2. No changes to the rule.

Reaffirmation of Rule 6700.4. No changes to the rule.

Reaffirmation of Rule 6700.5. No changes to the rule.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval __X__

BACKGROUND: Following the district guidelines to review district policies and rules every seven years.

OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATIONS: None.

RECOMMENDATIONS: Approval (for reaffirmation)

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: N/A

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTION:

TIME LINE: N/A

PERSONS RESPONSIBLE: Craig Whaley, Director of Activities and Athletics

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL: ________________________________________

121

sphelps
Keith's signature



Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment

Co-curricular Activities 6700

A vital component of a comprehensive educational program is a co-curricular activities program. Such activities,
properly supervised and kept in proper perspective, shall be maintained in the school program in order to give
students opportunities for experiences not possible in classroom activities. Care and consideration should be given
to the amount of time these activities take students away from school during school hours or away from studies on
“school nights.” This policy is applied in such areas as scheduling of interscholastic contests, meetings and trips
involving school organizations and in-school activities such as meetings, initiations, etc.

Supervision of Co-curricular Activities
Whenever or wherever held, when conducted under the name of the school or school district or any class or
organization thereof, co-curricular activities shall be under the general supervision of school authorities.

Non-Secret
Co-curricular groups shall not be secret in nature.

Participation
Students will be limited in participating in activities of a non-school nature during school hours. Prior to such
participation, approval must be granted by the building administrator.

Legal Reference: Neb. Rev. Stat. 79-2,101; Public schools, secret organizations; membership in, prohibited

Policy Adopted: June 16, 1975 Millard Public Schools
Revised: August 23, 1999 Omaha, Nebraska
Reaffirmed: May 19, 2008

122



Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment

Interscholastic Athletics and Activities - Approval 6700.2
Procedures and Criteria

I. Interscholastic Athletics and Activities

Interscholastic athletics and activities programs shall be established for both sexes and all such programs
shall be sanctioned by and be in compliance with the rules and regulations of the Nebraska School
Activities Association, the National Federation of State High School Associations, and the policies and
rules of the Millard Public Schools.

II. Student Participation and Eligibility

A. In compliance with the rules established by the Nebraska School Activities Association, the
principal or designee has the responsibility for determining the eligibility of students.

B. It shall be the responsibility of the coach to determine which candidates shall be members of the
team.

C. Standards for participation, conduct, and personal appearances shall be established by the coaches
and such standards shall be reasonable and in harmony with the philosophy and goals established
by the Millard Public Schools. In the case of any dispute, the principal or designee shall be
responsible for resolving the issue.

D. All participating students shall meet the rules and regulations established by the Nebraska School
Activities Association, the National Federation of State High School Associations, and the Millard
Public Schools.

III. Approval Procedures and Criteria for New Interscholastic Sports and Activities

A. All interscholastic sports and activities shall be required to obtain approval for adoption in the
Millard Public Schools in accordance with the following procedures and criteria.

1. An Interscholastic Sports and Activities application form shall be completed by the school
principal or designee and submitted to the Millard Public Schools Activities Committee.

2. When reviewing the application for an interscholastic sport or activity, the Activities
Committee and the Board of Education shall evaluate the following considerations and
criteria. Whether the interscholastic sport or activity:

a. can be conducted in compliance with the rules and regulations of the Nebraska
School Activities Association as well as the policies and rules of the Millard
Public Schools.

b. will meet a strong student interest which is not being met by the Millard Public
Schools or other community sports or activity programs.

c. is appropriate for the knowledge level, intellectual maturity, competence, and
age of the students.

d. has potential for growth.

e. will equalize the opportunities for girls and boys and meet the intent of Title IX.

123



f. provides adequate opportunity for participation and competition.

g. duplicates the general purposes of an existing interscholastic sport or activity
offered by the Millard Public Schools or other community sports or activities
offerings.

and, whether:

h. given the number and nature of interscholastic sports and activities in the
Millard Public Schools and community, it is appropriate to add the
interscholastic sport or activity.

i. the season in which the interscholastic sport or activity would be held allows for
adequate participation and competition, given the weather and geographical
conditions.

j. adequate facilities are available for the interscholastic sport or activity. Adding
a newly sanctioned interscholastic sport or activity should not overburden
existing facilities.

k. adequate funding is available for the newly sanctioned interscholastic sport or
activity. Funding should not be diverted from existing interscholastic sports or
activities to create new ones. All funding requirements, including start up and
annual operation costs, must be considered.

l. qualified and competent coaches and staff are available.

IV. Review and Discontinuance

A. The Activities Committee shall regularly review the activities and purposes of interscholastic
sports and activities and the Activities Committee may recommend to the Board of Education that
any interscholastic sport or activity be discontinued. Recommendations for discontinuance shall
be forwarded to and processed by the Board of Education in the manner provided above for
interscholastic sports or activities.

B. The Board of Education may on its own initiative, review and discontinue any interscholastic sport
or activity.

Related Policies and Rules: 6700, 6700.1, 6700.3, 6700.4, 6700.5, 6700.6, 6700.7, 6700.8.

Rule Approved: June 16, 1975 Millard Public Schools
Revised: August 23, 1999; March 4, 2002 Omaha, NE
Reaffirmed: May 19, 2008

124



Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment

Extracurricular School Sponsored Clubs and Activities,
and Interscholastic Athletics and Activities – School Social Events 6700.4

I. All school social events will be restricted to members of the student body, the class or club
concerned, and their guests. Parents are always welcome at school functions.

II. All school social events are to be properly chaperoned at the direction of the building principal or
designee.

III. Permission to have school social events is to be obtained from the building principal or designee
and placed on the calendar. The principal or designee shall require the group and their sponsor to
work out all details for preparation and clean-up.

IV. All school social events held on school nights should end by 11:00 p.m. unless changed by the
principal or designee.

V. The building principal or designee shall determine the number of school social events to be held
each year.

Related Policy: 6700, and Rules: 6700.1, 6700.2, 6700.3, 6700.5, 6700.6, 6700.7, 6700.8.

Rule Approved: December 1, 1975 Millard Public School
Reviewed: December 2, 1996 Omaha, NE
Revised: October 2, 2000; January 7, 2002; March 4, 2002
Reaffirmed: May 19, 2008

125



Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment

Extracurricular School Sponsored Clubs and Activities,
and Interscholastic Athletics and Activities – Intramural Athletics 6700.5

I. The building principal or designee shall be responsible for the building’s intramural athletic program which
shall be a balanced intramural athletic program for both sexes and with appropriate intramural athletics for
appropriate levels.

II. The building principal or designee shall see that the intramural athletic program is properly organized and
supervised, including the supervision of both participants and spectators.

III. Care shall be taken that intramural athletics are conducted primarily for the benefit of participants.

IV. The focus of the intramural athletic program shall be on participation.

Related Policy: 6700, and Rules: 6700.1, 6700.2, 6700.3, 6700.4, 6700.6, 6700.7, 6700.8.

Rule Approved: June 16, 1975 Millard Public Schools
Revised: August 23, 1999; March 4, 2002; Omaha, NE
Reaffirmed: May 19, 2008

126



AGENDA ITEM: Administrator Recommended for Hire

MEETING DATE: May 19, 2008

DEPARTMENT: Human Resources

TITLE & DESCRIPTION: Assistant Principal at North High School

ACTION DESIRED: Approval

BACKGROUND: The position was advertised in the Omaha World Herald, on the NASB
website, and in Millard’s job postings. Thirty-two applications were
received (twenty-six from outside the district and six from within the
district). The applications were reviewed by Dr. Kirby Eltiste, Brian
Begley, Jay Dostal, and Dr. Keith Lutz Two applicants from within the
district and four from outside the district were selected to interview for
the position. The interview teams included Dr. Kirby Eltiste, Dr. Keith
Lutz, Dr. Mark Feldhausen, Lori Jasa, Kraig Lofquist, Nancy Johnston,
Carrie Novotny-Buss, Dr. Jim Sutfin, Brian Begley, John
Olson(Parent), Jennifer Brown (Student), Mary Bayne (Teacher), Mark
Pilkington (Teacher), and Jay Dostal. I am recommending the
following individual for the position.

Chad Zimmerman Recommended for Assistant Principal at North High School. He is
currently a teacher and Dean of Boys at Westside Community Schools.
He has been in this position since 1999.

Education: BA—University of Nebraska at Lincoln in 1999; MA in Curriculum
and Instruction from Doane College in 2004, and a MA in Educational
Leadership from Doane in 2008.

OPTIONS & ALTERNATIVES: N/A

RECOMMENDATION: Approval

PERSON RECOMMENDING: Kirby Eltiste

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL:

127

sphelps
Keith's signature



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE: May 19, 2008

DEPARTMENT: Human Resources

ACTION DESIRED: Approval

BACKGROUND: Personnel items: (1) New Hires; (2) Contract Amendment;
(3) Leave of Absence; and (4) Resignations

OPTIONS & ALTERNATIVES: NA

RECOMMENDATION: Approval

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: N/A

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION
OR REJECTION: N/A

TIMELINE: N/A

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Dr. Kirby Eltiste

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL: __________________________________

128

sphelps
Keith's signature



May 19, 2008

AMENDMENT TO CONTINUING CONTRACTS

Recommend: amendment to the following contracts:

1. Rebecca Scherbring – Second grade teacher at Cottonwood Elementary School
for the 2008/2009 school year. Amend contract from 100% to 50% job share

2. Kristina Leeper – Special Ed Resource teacher at Disney Elementary School for
the 2008/2009 school year. Amend contract from 100% to 50%.

3. Kathleen Guinan – Counselor at Hitchcock Elementary School (50%) and Central
Middle School (50%) for 2008/2009 school year. Amend contract from 80% to
100%.

4. Stephanie Schade – Second grade teacher at Cottonwood Elementary School for
the 2008/2009 school year. She is returning from a Leave of Absence and we are
amending her contract from 100% to 50% job share.

129



May 19, 2008

LEAVE OF ABSENCE REQUESTS

Recommend: the following extended leave without pay requests be approved:

1. Becky Pfeifer – Language Arts teacher at Beadle Middle School. She is
requesting a Leave of Absence for family reasons for the 2008/2009 school year.

2. Lisa Masid Scheppers – Third grade teacher at Neihardt Elementary School. She
is requesting a Leave of Absence for family reasons for the 2008/2009 school
year.

130



May 19, 2008

RESIGNATIONS

Recommend: the following resignations be accepted:

1. Thomas Geary – Special Ed Resource teacher at South High School. He is resigning
effective immediately for personal reasons.

2. Lindsay Deitloff – Speech Pathologist at Wheeler Elementary School. She is resigning at
the end of the 2007/2008 school year to take a position outside of education.

3. Char Riewer – Cadre I Associate located at Beadle Middle School. She is resigning at
the end of the 2007/2008 school year to take another position in education.

4. Anne Shaughnessy – Kindergarten teacher at Cody Elementary School currently on long
term disability. She is retiring at the end of the 2007/2008 school year.

5. Cindy Menendez – Instructional Facilitator at Wheeler Elementary School. She is
resigning at the end of the 2007/2008 school year to take another job in education.

6. Ryan Broshar – Sixth grade teacher at Andersen Middle School. He is resigning at the
end of the 2007/2008 school year to take another job in education.

7. Megan Volz – Language Arts teacher (50%) at West High School. She is resigning at the
end of the 2007/2008 school year to take another job in education that would be full time.

8. Jenny Hudson – Special Ed Resource teacher at Cody Elementary School. She is
resigning at the end of the 2007/2008 school year due to relocation.

9. Lesley Schultz – Elementary Counselor at Bryan Elementary School. She is resigning at
the end of the 2007/2008 school year for personal reasons.

131



May 19, 2008

TEACHERS RECOMMENDED FOR HIRE

Recommend: the following teachers be hired:

1. Amy Meredith – MA+19 – University of Nebraska at Omaha. Special Ed
Resource teacher at Reagan Elementary School for the 2008/2009 school year.
Previous Exp: Ralston Public Schools (2004/2008).

2. Megan Schmidt – MA – Doane College. Special Ed Resource teacher at Bryan
Elementary School for the 2008/2009 school year. Previous Exp: Bennington
Public Schools (2003/2008); Bullhead City, AZ (2002/2003).

3. Mark Scott – BA – Northern Illinois. Science teacher (.5) and Social Studies
teacher (.5) at Andersen Middle School for the 2008/2009 school year.

4. William Morrison – MA – University of Nebraska at Omaha. Math teacher at
West High School for the 2008/2009 school year. Previous Exp: Fort Calhoun,
NE (1999/2008); Bellevue Public Schools (1996/1999).

5. Zachary Voller – MA – Clemson University. Math teacher (short-term) at South
High School for the 2008/2009 school year. Previous Exp: Iowa State University
(2005/2006); Clemson University (2003/2005).

6. Sara Bailey – BA+6 – University of Nebraska at Omaha. Special Ed Resource
teacher at the Millard Learning Center for the 2008/2009 school year. Previous
Exp: Metro Community College (2000/2002); Papillion/LaVista Schools
(1995/1999).

7. Patricia Knudson – BA+21 – College of St. Mary. Language Arts teacher at West
High School for the 2008/2009 school year.

8. Virginia Curtiss – MA – University of Nebraska at Lincoln. Special Ed Resource
teacher at Reeder Elementary School for the 2008/2009 school year. Previous
Exp: Omaha Public Schools (2007/2008).

9. Natalie Webber – BA – University of Nebraska at Omaha. First grade teacher at
Cottonwood Elementary School for the 2008/2009 school year.

132



10. Nancy Williams – University of Northern Iowa. Speech Pathologist at Norris
Elementary School for the 2008/2009 school year. Previous Exp: Loess Hills
AEA 13 (1999/2008); Rehab Works (1997/1999); Focus Rehab (1997/1999).

11. Anne Tipton – BA+13 – University of Nebraska at Lincoln. Vocal Music teacher
(50%) at Montclair Elementary School for the 2008/209 school year. Previous
Exp: Louisville Public Schools (2003/2008); Battle Creek, NE (2002/2003).

12. Katherine Schwarz – BA – Midland Lutheran College. Fifth grade teacher (short-
term) at Ezra Elementary School for the 2008/2009 school year.

13. Debra Marshall – BA+6 – Winona State University. Fourth grade teacher at
Cottonwood Elementary School for the 2008/2009 school year. Previous Exp:
Millard Public Schools (1989/1991); Fayetteville, AR (1987/1989); Worthington,
MN (1983/1986).

14. Deanna Castro – BA – Creighton University. Fifth grade teacher at Rohwer
Elementary School for the 2008/2009 school year.

15. Karen Marsh – BA – Buena Vista College. Fourth grade teacher at Harvey Oaks
Elementary School for the 2008/2009 school year. Previous Exp: Bellevue, NE
(2006/2008); Missouri Valley, IA (2004/2006).

133



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Parent Surveys

Meeting Date: 5-19-08

Department: Planning, Evaluation & Information Services.

Title and Brief
Description: A randomly selected sample of 4,167 parents were

mailed the Effective Schools Survey. There were 2,158
returns for an overall return rate of 51.7% (49.5% at the
elementary level, 39.2% at the middle level and 49.8% at
the high school level). On the item “what grade would
you give the school?” 91.5% of parents gave a grade of A
or B with 62% giving the grade of A.

Action Desired: Approval ___ Discussion x Information Only ____

Background: This parent survey is part of the Effective Schools
Battery which is also administered to support staff,
teachers, and students.

Options/Alternatives
Considered: N.A.

Recommendations: These data become a major part of the environmental
scan which is carried out for operational and strategic
planning. Each school receives this same data specific to
their population.

Strategic Plan
Reference: To meet the mission of the district.

Implications of
Adoption/Rejection: N.A.

Timeline: Use data in planning for 2008-2009

Responsible
Persons: Jon Lopez

Superintendent’s Signature: ______________________________

134

sphelps
Keith's signature



30

40

50

60

70

80

Historical Parent Data Districtwide ‐What grade would you give your 
school?  (Percent responding A, B, C, D or F) 

Spring 1998 Spring 1999 Spring 2000 Spring 2001 Spring 2002 Spring 2003 Spring 2004 Spring 2005 Spring 2006 Spring 2007 Spring 2008

% A 57.1 62.6 55.2 57.1428571 60.89 59.8 59.3297791 61.5 67.5 62.8 61.6

% B 34.75 31.2 36.5 34.6798029 32.39 32.9 34.5773038 30.7 28.9 28.48 29.9

% C 6.65 5.7 7.2 6.79802955 5.11 6.2 5.17897943 6 3.2 5.26 6.8

% D or F 1.55 0.5 1.1 1.37931034 1.61 1.1 0.68545316 1.9 0.4 1.44 1.7

0

10

20

135



30

40

50

60

70

80

Pe
rc
en

t R
es
po

nd
in
g

Parent Survey Districtwide by Level 2007‐2008 
What grade would you give your school?

Elementary Middle  High

% A 70.26087 54.464286 48.761905

% B 23.478261 36.383929 38.47619

% C 5.130435 7.589286 9.904762

% D or F 1.130435 1.5625 2.857143

0

10

20

30P
136



Effective Schools Parent Survey 2006-2007

Lowest 
School

Highest 
School

PARENT
School Environment 31.42 59.52
Safe & Orderly Environment 31.82 58.64
Discipline & Behavior 40.03 58.25
Maximum Opportunity to Learn 39.23 60.59
Monitoring Student Achievement 35.69 61.88
Parent/Community Involvement 32.98 59.20
Leadership 34.57 60.76

Lowest 
School

Highest 
School

PARENT
School Environment 38.06 54.22
Safe & Orderly Environment 38.81 55.20
Discipline & Behavior 38.94 58.66
Maximum Opportunity to Learn 44.26 56.46
Monitoring Student Achievement 46.17 57.50
Parent/Community Involvement 46.00 55.42
Leadership 45.83 54.47

Lowest 
School

Highest 
School

PARENT
School Environment 38.17 51.55
Safe & Orderly Environment 45.01 52.98
Discipline & Behavior 38.34 51.44
Maximum Opportunity to Learn 24.26 53.20
Monitoring Student Achievement 39.68 52.74
Parent/Community Involvement 42.08 50.81
Leadership 44.71 54.23

Indication of Lowest & Highest Schools' Scale Score Value
Scale Score Values ELEMENTARY Schools

Indication of Lowest & Highest Schools' Scale Score Values
Scale Score Values High Schools

Indication of Lowest & Highest Schools' Scale Score Value
Scale Score Values MIDDLE Schools

137



Effective Schools Parent Survey 2007-2008

Lowest 
School

Highest 
School

PARENT
School Environment 39.01 57.12
Safe & Orderly Environment 37.77 58.38
Discipline & Behavior 41.09 57.63
Maximum Opportunity to Learn 41.30 58.17
Monitoring Student Achievement 41.71 57.70
Parent/Community Involvement 39.80 56.10
Leadership 39.65 61.43

Lowest 
School

Highest 
School

PARENT
School Environment 42.67 57.41
Safe & Orderly Environment 44.19 57.20
Discipline & Behavior 45.17 56.17
Maximum Opportunity to Learn 45.76 54.33
Monitoring Student Achievement 45.09 52.57
Parent/Community Involvement 46.69 57.86
Leadership 41.38 57.70

Lowest 
School

Highest 
School

PARENT
School Environment 47.78 52.51
Safe & Orderly Environment 47.94 50.87
Discipline & Behavior 48.48 50.97
Maximum Opportunity to Learn 49.44 50.90
Monitoring Student Achievement 48.54 51.98
Parent/Community Involvement 47.91 53.34
Leadership 48.09 51.79

Indication of Lowest & Highest Schools' Scale Score Values   
Scale Score Values High Schools

Indication of Lowest & Highest Schools' Scale Score Value
Scale Score Values ELEMENTARY Schools

Indication of Lowest & Highest Schools' Scale Score Value
Scale Score Values MIDDLE Schools

138



My child is treated with respect by staff members at this school.

2 .2 .2 .2
26 2.2 2.2 2.4

183 15.8 15.8 18.2
949 81.8 81.8 100.0

1160 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

My child likes his or her school.

3 .3 .3 .3
38 3.3 3.3 3.5

235 20.2 20.2 23.7
887 76.3 76.3 100.0

1163 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

The students at my child’s school show that they care about each other.

3 .3 .3 .3
136 11.7 11.7 12.0
590 50.8 50.8 62.8
432 37.2 37.2 100.0

1161 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

Students at my child’s school show respect for each other’s property.

6 .5 .5 .5
100 8.6 8.6 9.1
584 50.3 50.3 59.4
471 40.6 40.6 100.0

1161 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

My child is safe at this school.

2 .2 .2 .2
13 1.1 1.1 1.3

171 14.7 14.7 16.0
978 84.0 84.0 100.0

1164 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

Elementary Parent Survey 2007-2008: District Data

Page 1

139



This school has rules in place to maintain safety.

20 1.7 1.7 1.7
141 12.2 12.2 13.9
999 86.1 86.1 100.0

1160 100.0 100.0

Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

There is adequate supervision of students at this school.

3 .3 .3 .3
41 3.5 3.5 3.8

256 22.1 22.1 25.9
858 74.1 74.1 100.0

1158 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

The rules are followed by the students at this school.

1 .1 .1 .1
55 4.7 4.7 4.8

589 50.8 50.8 55.6
515 44.4 44.4 100.0

1160 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

My child is bullied at this school.

38 3.3 3.3 3.3
14 1.2 1.2 4.5

215 18.5 18.5 23.0
896 77.0 77.0 100.0

1163 100.0 100.0

Almost All of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Some of the Time
Almost Never
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

I believe my child understands the consequences of his or her actions.

2 .2 .2 .2
33 2.8 2.8 3.0

323 27.7 27.7 30.8
806 69.2 69.2 100.0

1164 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

Elementary Parent Survey 2007-2008: District Data

Page 2

140



Staff members do a good job of preventing students from misbehaving.

5 .4 .4 .4
57 4.9 4.9 5.3

480 41.4 41.4 46.8
617 53.2 53.2 100.0

1159 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

Staff members are fair when dealing with students who misbehave.

12 1.0 1.0 1.0
87 7.5 7.5 8.6

387 33.4 33.4 42.0
671 58.0 58.0 100.0

1157 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

The school’s policy is effective in dealing with students who misbehave.

10 .9 .9 .9
78 6.8 6.8 7.7

395 34.5 34.5 42.1
663 57.9 57.9 100.0

1146 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

The work assigned to my child challenges him or her appropriately.

13 1.1 1.1 1.1
115 9.9 9.9 11.0
412 35.5 35.5 46.5
622 53.5 53.5 100.0

1162 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

I am satisfied with the curriculum at my child’s school.

8 .7 .7 .7
83 7.1 7.1 7.8

387 33.3 33.3 41.1
685 58.9 58.9 100.0

1163 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

Elementary Parent Survey 2007-2008: District Data

Page 3

141



If my child needs extra help, it is offered at this school.

14 1.2 1.2 1.2
69 6.0 6.0 7.2

280 24.3 24.3 31.5
788 68.5 68.5 100.0

1151 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

There are sufficient academic opportunities available in my child’s school.

10 .9 .9 .9
94 8.1 8.1 9.0

318 27.5 27.5 36.5
734 63.5 63.5 100.0

1156 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

My child's teacher(s) encourage(s) him or her to excel.

12 1.0 1.0 1.0
62 5.3 5.3 6.4

235 20.2 20.2 26.6
853 73.4 73.4 100.0

1162 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

My child is progressing academically in school.

5 .4 .4 .4
39 3.4 3.4 3.8

283 24.4 24.4 28.2
832 71.8 71.8 100.0

1159 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

I feel that my child is learning the curriculum from his or her teacher(s).

5 .4 .4 .4
47 4.1 4.1 4.5

259 22.3 22.3 26.8
849 73.2 73.2 100.0

1160 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

Elementary Parent Survey 2007-2008: District Data

Page 4

142



School is preparing my child to be successful in life.

8 .7 .7 .7
64 5.5 5.5 6.2

293 25.3 25.3 31.5
794 68.5 68.5 100.0

1159 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

I am satisfied with the instruction at my child’s school.

9 .8 .8 .8
71 6.1 6.1 6.9

328 28.3 28.3 35.2
750 64.8 64.8 100.0

1158 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

I have access to adequate information about my child’s academic progress.

5 .4 .4 .4
71 6.1 6.1 6.6

240 20.7 20.7 27.2
844 72.8 72.8 100.0

1160 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

My child receives constructive feedback on his or her classwork.

15 1.3 1.3 1.3
72 6.2 6.2 7.5

339 29.3 29.3 36.8
731 63.2 63.2 100.0

1157 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

I am provided with opportunities to become involved in my child's school.

6 .5 .5 .5
47 4.0 4.0 4.6

205 17.7 17.7 22.2
903 77.8 77.8 100.0

1161 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

Elementary Parent Survey 2007-2008: District Data

Page 5

143



I believe parent/teacher or student-led conferences are important.

8 .7 .7 .7
31 2.7 2.7 3.4
98 8.4 8.4 11.8

1023 88.2 88.2 100.0
1160 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

School communication is meaningful and timely so I am well-informed about school issues.

12 1.0 1.0 1.0
70 6.0 6.0 7.1

261 22.5 22.5 29.6
815 70.4 70.4 100.0

1158 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

District communication is meaningful and timely so I am well-informed about district issues.

17 1.5 1.5 1.5
75 6.5 6.5 8.0

343 29.6 29.6 37.6
722 62.4 62.4 100.0

1157 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

Teachers at this school are good role models for my child.

6 .5 .5 .5
32 2.8 2.8 3.3

243 20.9 20.9 24.2
880 75.8 75.8 100.0

1161 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

The principal and assistant principals are positive role models for the students.

10 .9 .9 .9
38 3.3 3.3 4.2

184 16.0 16.0 20.1
920 79.9 79.9 100.0

1152 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

Elementary Parent Survey 2007-2008: District Data

Page 6

144



When I have concerns about my child, building staff help me get them resolved.

15 1.3 1.3 1.3
57 5.0 5.0 6.3

230 20.1 20.1 26.4
843 73.6 73.6 100.0

1145 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

There is an effective principal (and assistant principals) at this school.

21 1.8 1.8 1.8
48 4.2 4.2 6.0

175 15.2 15.2 21.2
908 78.8 78.8 100.0

1152 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

The principal and assistant principals listen to my suggestions, questions or concerns.

25 2.2 2.2 2.2
57 5.1 5.1 7.3

224 20.0 20.0 27.3
814 72.7 72.7 100.0

1120 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

I have confidence in this building administration's decisions.

20 1.7 1.7 1.7
68 5.9 5.9 7.6

249 21.6 21.6 29.2
816 70.8 70.8 100.0

1153 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

I would like to see stricter rules at my child's school.

183 16.0 16.0 16.0
960 84.0 84.0 100.0

1143 100.0 100.0

Yes
No
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

Elementary Parent Survey 2007-2008: District Data

Page 7

145



My child reads well for the grade he or she is in.

136 11.8 11.8 11.8
1016 88.2 88.2 100.0
1152 100.0 100.0

No
Yes
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

My child does math problems well for the grade he or she is in.

123 10.7 10.7 10.7
1023 89.3 89.3 100.0
1146 100.0 100.0

No
Yes
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

My child writes well for the grade he or she is in.

176 15.3 15.3 15.3
971 84.7 84.7 100.0

1147 100.0 100.0

No
Yes
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

I am satisfied with the information available to me about my child's academic progress.

91 7.9 7.9 7.9
1063 92.1 92.1 100.0
1154 100.0 100.0

No
Yes
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

If I were to assign a letter grade to my child's school, it would be:

3 .3 .3 .3
10 .9 .9 1.1
59 5.1 5.1 6.3

270 23.5 23.5 29.7
808 70.3 70.3 100.0

1150 100.0 100.0

F
D
C
B
A
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

Elementary Parent Survey 2007-2008: District Data

Page 8

146



My child is treated with respect by staff members at this school.

2 .4 .4 .4
16 3.6 3.6 4.0

142 31.7 31.7 35.7
288 64.3 64.3 100.0
448 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

My child likes his or her school.

3 .7 .7 .7
25 5.6 5.6 6.2

143 31.8 31.8 38.1
278 61.9 61.9 100.0
449 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

The students at my child’s school show that they care about each other.

7 1.6 1.6 1.6
106 23.8 23.8 25.4
242 54.4 54.4 79.8

90 20.2 20.2 100.0
445 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

Students at my child’s school show respect for each other’s property.

12 2.7 2.7 2.7
92 20.7 20.7 23.4

247 55.6 55.6 79.1
93 20.9 20.9 100.0

444 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

My child is safe at this school.

2 .4 .4 .4
11 2.4 2.4 2.9
95 21.2 21.2 24.1

341 75.9 75.9 100.0
449 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

Middle School Parent Survey 2007-2008: District Data

Page 9

147



This school has rules in place to maintain safety.

3 .7 .7 .7
9 2.0 2.0 2.7

74 16.5 16.5 19.2
363 80.8 80.8 100.0
449 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

There is adequate supervision of students at this school.

4 .9 .9 .9
21 4.7 4.7 5.6

132 29.6 29.6 35.2
289 64.8 64.8 100.0
446 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

The rules are followed by the students at this school.

5 1.1 1.1 1.1
56 12.6 12.6 13.7

270 60.8 60.8 74.5
113 25.5 25.5 100.0
444 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

My child is bullied at this school.

16 3.6 3.6 3.6
9 2.0 2.0 5.6

82 18.3 18.3 23.8
342 76.2 76.2 100.0
449 100.0 100.0

Almost All of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Some of the Time
Almost Never
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

I believe my child understands the consequences of his or her actions.

1 .2 .2 .2
10 2.2 2.2 2.4
94 20.9 20.9 23.4

344 76.6 76.6 100.0
449 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

Middle School Parent Survey 2007-2008: District Data

Page 10

148



Staff members do a good job of preventing students from misbehaving.

7 1.6 1.6 1.6
32 7.2 7.2 8.7

212 47.5 47.5 56.3
195 43.7 43.7 100.0
446 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

Staff members are fair when dealing with students who misbehave.

8 1.8 1.8 1.8
51 11.4 11.4 13.2

172 38.5 38.5 51.7
216 48.3 48.3 100.0
447 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

The school’s policy is effective in dealing with students who misbehave.

8 1.8 1.8 1.8
37 8.4 8.4 10.2

176 39.7 39.7 49.9
222 50.1 50.1 100.0
443 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

The work assigned to my child challenges him or her appropriately.

3 .7 .7 .7
48 10.7 10.7 11.4

156 34.8 34.8 46.2
241 53.8 53.8 100.0
448 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

I am satisfied with the curriculum at my child’s school.

1 .2 .2 .2
31 6.9 6.9 7.1

148 33.0 33.0 40.2
268 59.8 59.8 100.0
448 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

Middle School Parent Survey 2007-2008: District Data

Page 11

149



If my child needs extra help, it is offered at this school.

2 .4 .4 .4
24 5.4 5.4 5.8

111 24.9 24.9 30.7
309 69.3 69.3 100.0
446 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

There are sufficient academic opportunities available in my child’s school.

2 .4 .4 .4
16 3.6 3.6 4.0

122 27.2 27.2 31.3
308 68.8 68.8 100.0
448 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

My child's teacher(s) encourage(s) him or her to excel.

5 1.1 1.1 1.1
35 7.8 7.8 9.0

148 33.2 33.2 42.2
258 57.8 57.8 100.0
446 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

My child is progressing academically in school.

25 5.6 5.6 5.6
127 28.3 28.3 33.9
297 66.1 66.1 100.0
449 100.0 100.0

Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

I feel that my child is learning the curriculum from his or her teacher(s).

1 .2 .2 .2
27 6.0 6.0 6.3

147 32.8 32.8 39.1
273 60.9 60.9 100.0
448 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

Middle School Parent Survey 2007-2008: District Data

Page 12

150



School is preparing my child to be successful in life.

3 .7 .7 .7
30 6.7 6.7 7.4

147 32.8 32.8 40.2
268 59.8 59.8 100.0
448 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

I am satisfied with the instruction at my child’s school.

1 .2 .2 .2
32 7.2 7.2 7.4

162 36.2 36.2 43.6
252 56.4 56.4 100.0
447 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

I have access to adequate information about my child’s academic progress.

13 2.9 2.9 2.9
77 17.1 17.1 20.0

359 80.0 80.0 100.0
449 100.0 100.0

Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

My child receives constructive feedback on his or her classwork.

4 .9 .9 .9
58 13.0 13.0 13.9

164 36.7 36.7 50.6
221 49.4 49.4 100.0
447 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

I am provided with opportunities to become involved in my child's school.

5 1.1 1.1 1.1
59 13.2 13.2 14.3

131 29.2 29.2 43.5
253 56.5 56.5 100.0
448 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

Middle School Parent Survey 2007-2008: District Data

Page 13

151



I believe parent/teacher or student-led conferences are important.

21 4.7 4.7 4.7
32 7.1 7.1 11.8
70 15.6 15.6 27.5

325 72.5 72.5 100.0
448 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

School communication is meaningful and timely so I am well-informed about school issues.

4 .9 .9 .9
35 7.8 7.8 8.7

149 33.3 33.3 42.1
259 57.9 57.9 100.0
447 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

District communication is meaningful and timely so I am well-informed about district issues.

8 1.8 1.8 1.8
56 12.6 12.6 14.3

148 33.2 33.2 47.5
234 52.5 52.5 100.0
446 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

Teachers at this school are good role models for my child.

2 .5 .5 .5
28 6.3 6.3 6.8

172 38.7 38.7 45.5
242 54.5 54.5 100.0
444 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

The principal and assistant principals are positive role models for the students.

5 1.1 1.1 1.1
24 5.5 5.5 6.6

119 27.0 27.0 33.6
292 66.4 66.4 100.0
440 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

Middle School Parent Survey 2007-2008: District Data

Page 14

152



When I have concerns about my child, building staff help me get them resolved.

7 1.6 1.6 1.6
30 6.8 6.8 8.4

120 27.4 27.4 35.8
281 64.2 64.2 100.0
438 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

There is an effective principal (and assistant principals) at this school.

9 2.0 2.0 2.0
25 5.6 5.6 7.6
95 21.3 21.3 29.0

316 71.0 71.0 100.0
445 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

The principal and assistant principals listen to my suggestions, questions or concerns.

9 2.1 2.1 2.1
32 7.6 7.6 9.7

113 26.7 26.7 36.4
269 63.6 63.6 100.0
423 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

I have confidence in this building administration's decisions.

7 1.6 1.6 1.6
32 7.2 7.2 8.7

140 31.4 31.4 40.1
267 59.9 59.9 100.0
446 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

I would like to see stricter rules at my child's school.

110 25.1 25.1 25.1
329 74.9 74.9 100.0
439 100.0 100.0

Yes
No
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

Middle School Parent Survey 2007-2008: District Data

Page 15

153



My child reads well for the grade he or she is in.

51 11.4 11.4 11.4
397 88.6 88.6 100.0
448 100.0 100.0

No
Yes
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

My child does math problems well for the grade he or she is in.

63 14.1 14.1 14.1
385 85.9 85.9 100.0
448 100.0 100.0

No
Yes
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

My child writes well for the grade he or she is in.

87 19.5 19.5 19.5
359 80.5 80.5 100.0
446 100.0 100.0

No
Yes
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

I am satisfied with the information available to me about my child's academic progress.

21 4.7 4.7 4.7
424 95.3 95.3 100.0
445 100.0 100.0

No
Yes
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

If I were to assign a letter grade to my child's school, it would be:

1 .2 .2 .2
6 1.3 1.3 1.6

34 7.6 7.6 9.2
163 36.4 36.4 45.5
244 54.5 54.5 100.0
448 100.0 100.0

F
D
C
B
A
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

Middle School Parent Survey 2007-2008: District Data

Page 16

154



My child is treated with respect by staff members at this school.

3 .6 .6 .6
44 8.3 8.3 8.9

201 38.0 38.0 46.9
281 53.1 53.1 100.0
529 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

My child likes his or her school.

11 2.1 2.1 2.1
66 12.5 12.5 14.6

196 37.1 37.1 51.7
255 48.3 48.3 100.0
528 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

The students at my child’s school show that they care about each other.

11 2.1 2.1 2.1
183 34.9 34.9 37.0
252 48.0 48.0 85.0

79 15.0 15.0 100.0
525 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

Students at my child’s school show respect for each other’s property.

23 4.4 4.4 4.4
172 32.8 32.8 37.2
266 50.8 50.8 88.0

63 12.0 12.0 100.0
524 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

My child is safe at this school.

3 .6 .6 .6
29 5.5 5.5 6.1

199 37.9 37.9 44.0
294 56.0 56.0 100.0
525 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

C

High School Parent Survey 2007-2008: District Data

Page 17

155



This school has rules in place to maintain safety.

2 .4 .4 .4
25 4.7 4.7 5.1

140 26.4 26.4 31.5
363 68.5 68.5 100.0
530 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

There is adequate supervision of students at this school.

5 1.0 1.0 1.0
52 9.9 9.9 10.9

220 42.0 42.0 52.9
247 47.1 47.1 100.0
524 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

The rules are followed by the students at this school.

10 1.9 1.9 1.9
120 22.9 22.9 24.8
315 60.0 60.0 84.8

80 15.2 15.2 100.0
525 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

My child is bullied at this school.

8 1.5 1.5 1.5
2 .4 .4 1.9

92 17.6 17.6 19.5
422 80.5 80.5 100.0
524 100.0 100.0

Almost All of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Some of the Time
Almost Never
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

I believe my child understands the consequences of his or her actions.

3 .6 .6 .6
15 2.8 2.8 3.4

121 23.0 23.0 26.4
388 73.6 73.6 100.0
527 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

C

High School Parent Survey 2007-2008: District Data

Page 18

156



Staff members do a good job of preventing students from misbehaving.

10 1.9 1.9 1.9
64 12.2 12.2 14.1

291 55.5 55.5 69.7
159 30.3 30.3 100.0
524 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

Staff members are fair when dealing with students who misbehave.

12 2.3 2.3 2.3
91 17.7 17.7 20.0

258 50.1 50.1 70.1
154 29.9 29.9 100.0
515 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

The school’s policy is effective in dealing with students who misbehave.

15 2.9 2.9 2.9
78 15.0 15.0 17.9

258 49.6 49.6 67.5
169 32.5 32.5 100.0
520 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

The work assigned to my child challenges him or her appropriately.

6 1.1 1.1 1.1
49 9.3 9.3 10.4

231 43.7 43.7 54.1
243 45.9 45.9 100.0
529 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

I am satisfied with the curriculum at my child’s school.

6 1.1 1.1 1.1
28 5.3 5.3 6.4

212 39.9 39.9 46.3
285 53.7 53.7 100.0
531 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

C

High School Parent Survey 2007-2008: District Data

Page 19

157



If my child needs extra help, it is offered at this school.

8 1.5 1.5 1.5
41 7.8 7.8 9.3

184 34.9 34.9 44.2
294 55.8 55.8 100.0
527 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

There are sufficient academic opportunities available in my child’s school.

5 1.0 1.0 1.0
15 2.9 2.9 3.8

147 27.9 27.9 31.7
359 68.3 68.3 100.0
526 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

My child's teacher(s) encourage(s) him or her to excel.

17 3.2 3.2 3.2
80 15.2 15.2 18.4

212 40.2 40.2 58.5
219 41.5 41.5 100.0
528 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

My child is progressing academically in school.

11 2.1 2.1 2.1
38 7.2 7.2 9.3

193 36.7 36.7 46.0
284 54.0 54.0 100.0
526 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

I feel that my child is learning the curriculum from his or her teacher(s).

8 1.5 1.5 1.5
40 7.6 7.6 9.1

250 47.5 47.5 56.7
228 43.3 43.3 100.0
526 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

C

High School Parent Survey 2007-2008: District Data

Page 20

158



School is preparing my child to be successful in life.

17 3.2 3.2 3.2
53 10.1 10.1 13.3

228 43.3 43.3 56.5
229 43.5 43.5 100.0
527 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

I am satisfied with the instruction at my child’s school.

7 1.3 1.3 1.3
59 11.2 11.2 12.5

245 46.6 46.6 59.1
215 40.9 40.9 100.0
526 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

I have access to adequate information about my child’s academic progress.

1 .2 .2 .2
13 2.5 2.5 2.7

133 25.4 25.4 28.1
377 71.9 71.9 100.0
524 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

My child receives constructive feedback on his or her classwork.

11 2.1 2.1 2.1
103 19.7 19.7 21.8
237 45.3 45.3 67.1
172 32.9 32.9 100.0
523 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

I am provided with opportunities to become involved in my child's school.

12 2.3 2.3 2.3
64 12.2 12.2 14.4

181 34.4 34.4 48.9
269 51.1 51.1 100.0
526 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

C

High School Parent Survey 2007-2008: District Data

Page 21

159



I believe parent/teacher or student-led conferences are important.

9 1.7 1.7 1.7
44 8.4 8.4 10.1

102 19.4 19.4 29.5
371 70.5 70.5 100.0
526 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

School communication is meaningful and timely so I am well-informed about school issues.

5 1.0 1.0 1.0
48 9.1 9.1 10.1

184 35.0 35.0 45.1
288 54.9 54.9 100.0
525 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

District communication is meaningful and timely so I am well-informed about district issues.

14 2.7 2.7 2.7
67 12.7 12.7 15.4

196 37.2 37.2 52.6
250 47.4 47.4 100.0
527 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

Teachers at this school are good role models for my child.

8 1.5 1.5 1.5
86 16.4 16.4 17.9

265 50.6 50.6 68.5
165 31.5 31.5 100.0
524 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

The principal and assistant principals are positive role models for the students.

15 2.9 2.9 2.9
37 7.1 7.1 10.0

169 32.5 32.5 42.5
299 57.5 57.5 100.0
520 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

C

High School Parent Survey 2007-2008: District Data

Page 22

160



When I have concerns about my child, building staff help me get them resolved.

13 2.5 2.5 2.5
57 11.2 11.2 13.7

194 38.0 38.0 51.7
247 48.3 48.3 100.0
511 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

There is an effective principal (and assistant principals) at this school.

13 2.5 2.5 2.5
38 7.4 7.4 9.9

162 31.4 31.4 41.3
303 58.7 58.7 100.0
516 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

The principal and assistant principals listen to my suggestions, questions or concerns.

19 3.9 3.9 3.9
62 12.7 12.7 16.6

174 35.7 35.7 52.4
232 47.6 47.6 100.0
487 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

I have confidence in this building administration's decisions.

15 2.9 2.9 2.9
54 10.4 10.4 13.3

205 39.6 39.6 52.9
244 47.1 47.1 100.0
518 100.0 100.0

Almost Never
Some of the Time
A Majority of the Time
Almost All of the Time
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

I would like to see stricter rules at my child's school.

169 32.6 32.6 32.6
349 67.4 67.4 100.0
518 100.0 100.0

Yes
No
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

C

High School Parent Survey 2007-2008: District Data

Page 23

161



My child reads well for the grade he or she is in.

53 10.1 10.1 10.1
472 89.9 89.9 100.0
525 100.0 100.0

No
Yes
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

My child does math problems well for the grade he or she is in.

78 14.9 14.9 14.9
446 85.1 85.1 100.0
524 100.0 100.0

No
Yes
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

My child writes well for the grade he or she is in.

82 15.7 15.7 15.7
441 84.3 84.3 100.0
523 100.0 100.0

No
Yes
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

I am satisfied with the information available to me about my child's academic progress.

33 6.3 6.3 6.3
490 93.7 93.7 100.0
523 100.0 100.0

No
Yes
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

If I were to assign a letter grade to my child's school, it would be:

4 .8 .8 .8
11 2.1 2.1 2.9
52 9.9 9.9 12.8

202 38.5 38.5 51.2
256 48.8 48.8 100.0
525 100.0 100.0

F
D
C
B
A
Total

Valid
Frequency Percent Valid Percent

Cumulative
Percent

C

High School Parent Survey 2007-2008: District Data

Page 24

162



Projections for 2008-09

Proj K 2008

Proj 1st

2008

Proj 2nd

2008

Proj 3rd

2008

Proj 4th

2008

Proj 5th

2008 self cont

Projected

Total

Official End-
of-Sept.

2007 Difference

Abbott 84 58 68 70 56 70 406 414 -8
Ackerman 100 101 79 90 89 97 556 574 -18
Aldrich 65 57 87 76 90 72 447 425 22
Black Elk 86 90 101 78 108 92 555 565 -10
Bryan 65 66 67 65 63 64 390 379 11
Cather 67 74 73 70 65 70 419 416 3
Cody 37 45 46 32 38 35 18 233 232 1
Cottonwood 64 56 54 58 70 47 349 341 8
Disney 45 45 46 33 49 39 21 257 271 -14
Ezra Millard 65 58 58 62 63 82 10 388 396 -8
Harvey Oaks 44 44 51 47 47 53 286 279 7
Hitchcock 26 25 35 25 28 39 19 178 191 -13
Holling Heights 52 69 63 68 69 59 380 446 -66
Montclair 91 90 98 95 77 100 551 550 1
Morton 41 58 62 68 56 69 15 354 365 -11
Neihardt 91 94 99 110 73 91 558 568 -10
Norris 68 50 66 61 57 55 357 342 15
Reagan 123 110 108 91 91 58 581 471 110
Reeder 68 87 73 73 66 64 431 376 55
Rockwell 48 44 56 50 49 45 25 292 371 -79
Rohwer 70 96 87 90 81 64 26 488 501 -13
Sandoz 47 62 57 51 46 54 317 310 7
Upchurch 71 37 50 43 25 26 252 0 252
Wheeler 110 94 104 93 87 92 22 580 583 -3
Willowdale 53 72 66 83 66 76 416 420 -4

1681 1682 1754 1682 1609 1613 156 10021 9786 235

Proj 6th

2008

Proj 7th

2008

Proj 8th

2008 Proj Total

AMS 265 278 239 782 778 4
BMS 305 323 252 880 788 92
CMS 262 221 278 761 750 11
KMS 308 290 322 920 911 9
NMS 250 260 252 762 717 45
RMS 313 296 295 904 852 52
MS Alter 5 17 22 22 0

1703 1673 1655 5031 4818 213

Proj 9th

2007

Proj 10th

2007

Proj 11th

2007

Proj 12th

2007 Proj Total

North HS 575 588 644 638 2445 2498 -53
South HS 524 536 491 549 2100 2107 -7
West HS 544 529 566 505 2144 2117 27
MLC 17 68 85 85 0

1643 1653 1718 1760 6774 6807 -33

Contracted SPED 39 39 0
Young Adult Program 48 48 0 12-May-08
District Projected Total 21913 21498 415

163



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Curriculum Management Audit Update

MEETING DATE: May 19, 2008

DEPARTMENT: Educational Services

TITLE AND
BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Curriculum Management Audit Update

ACTION DESIRED: __X__ Information

BACKGROUND: The original Phi Delta Kappa sponsored Curriculum
Management Audit was conducted in the Spring of 1998. In
the Spring of 2007, the Board commissioned a follow-up
Curriculum Management Audit to determine the progress that
had been made over the preceding nine years and to identify
those areas in further need of attention. The follow-up audit
has nine continuing recommendations and numerous sub-points
to each requiring the collective efforts of not only Educational
Services, but also, Human Resources, Planning and Evaluation,
the Business Office, Technology, General Administration, and
the Superintendent. Review and implementation of these
recommendations, where appropriate, is a multi-year project.

RECOMMENDATIONS: NA

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: None

TIMELINE: On-going

RESPONSIBLE PERSON(S): Dr. Mark Feldhausen, Assoc. Supt. for Ed. Services

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL: ______________________
(Signature)

BOARD ACTION:

164

sphelps
Keith's signature



Post-Audit Continuing Recommendations

Recommendation ES HR P/E Tech Bus/

Fin

Gen

Adm

Supt Exec

Cabt

Policy/Rule Reference Action to be Taken Timeline
Responsible Party

9.4: Revise and update the Technology portion of Board
Policy 1000.1: Site Based Planning and Shared Decision
Making to reflect district level decisions that include
assistance with the integration of technology into the
curriculum and district level technology staff
development.

X X Policy 1000.1 Rec 9.4 was addressed
in July 2007 in Rule
10,000.1

9.5: Establish measurable criteria for the evaluation of
the technology program in terms of supporting teaching
and learning and increased productivity in district
operations.

X X

9.6: Continue to refine technological procedures to
facilitate instructional decision making. Among the areas
that need attention are the following:

X X X

- Efficient access to the curriculum online X X X
- Assessment and data reporting of ELOs X X X

Rec 9.6 is being
addressed by the
implementation of the
data warehouse and
Growth Path Analytics
software. This was
approved by the Board
on January 21, 2008.

Done

- Infinite Campus X X X
- Elementary report cards X X X Continued work on

elementary report cards
and the implementation
of K-1 standards based
report card next year in
Infinite Campus address
(Rec 9.6).

Done

9.7: Assist teachers and administrators in the
implementation of recent initiatives so these efforts are
mutually supportive. For example, Professional Learning
Communities can be used as a vehicle to promote
articulation and coordination of the curriculum; make
decisions on pacing, reteaching, etc. based on assessment
data; and sharing ideas on differentiation of instruction.

X

165



Curriculum Management Audit (CMA) Update Summary

The following actions have been taken under each of the CMA Continuing
Recommendations:

Continuing Recommendation 1: Establish a cycle of board policy review. Continue to
revise current policies or adopt new policies to provide for local curriculum management
and quality control.

 The Superintendent continues to direct that all policies and rules should be reviewed
every seven years. The Director of Administrative Affairs is tasked with tracking
Policy/Rule updates. This requires that 78 be reviewed and updated per year; 54
have been so updated this school year. (Addresses Rec.1.1 & 1.6).

 Rec. 1.3 calls for Board approval of primary resources contained in Curriculum
Frameworks. This is addressed by Rule 6130.1 rather than 6120.1.

 Although all Curriculum Policies/Rules (6000 series) were reaffirmed or revised in
2005 and 2006, each 6000 series policy and rule is currently under review based on
CMA recommendations.

Continuing Recommendation 2: Revise the Table of Organization and Job Descriptions to
reflect current expectations, roles, and responsibilities.

 Recommendation 2.1 calls for the creation of a Pre-K-12 Curriculum Director and a
redesign of the MEP Facilitator positions to have Pre-K-12 responsibilities. As
described in comments in Recommendation 4, the Language Arts process has been
adjusted to address these Pre-K-12 concerns. In addition, the current open position
for a replacement MEP Facilitator notes responsibility for Pre-K-12 curriculum
development.

 HR is in the process of posting job descriptions (non-Admin) to District Intranet in
response to communications and curriculum alignment issues cited in Rec 2.1.

 Job descriptions for building administrators (2100.51, .52, .53, .54, .55, .56, .57)
were revised and presented to the Board on January 21, 2008, in response to Rec 2.3.

 Job description for classroom teacher has been reviewed and redrafted to reflect
CMA recommendations and alignment with Rule 6200.1—Taught Curriculum:
Instructional Delivery. (Rec 2.3)

Continuing Recommendation 3: Revise curriculum management planning to address audit
recommendations.

 Recommendation 3.3 calls for the re-examination of the MEP Facilitator’s Job
Description requiring content expertise for each curricular area with K-12
responsibility. Educational Services is making adjustments to the MEP process to

166



make it more of a K-12 process, but it does not believe that this recommendation can
be fully implemented without a significant increase in the number of MEP Facilitators
especially if this is to be interpreted as one content expert per discipline. At this time,
no further action will be taken on this recommendation.

Continuing Recommendation 4: Develop and initiate a program and student assessment plan
that includes the PDK/CMSi Characteristics of a Comprehensive Student and Program
Assessment Plan. Include the development of formal assessments that support district
curricular offerings.

 Action on the Assessment System was postponed in anticipation of legislative
decisions regarding State Assessments

 Newly created data retreats have been conducted for numerous buildings, Educational
Services, and the Language Arts MEP Phase 1 team. The date retreat will become an
integral part of the MEP curriculum development process and will be incorporated
into Rule 6120.1

Continuing Recommendation 5: Continue to focus the staff development program to: provide
connectivity between curriculum design and classroom delivery, provide linkage to goals and
district long-range plans, provide staff development based on identified needs, and foster
improved teacher performance and student achievement.

 In response to recommendation 5.1, a Comprehensive Staff Development Plan was
assembled and presented to the Board as a report on March 3, 2008. This Plan aligns
the initiatives of the District and focuses the staff development activities as
recommended in the audit.

 The Comprehensive Staff Development Plan addressed issues found in
Recommendations 5.2, 5.4, and 5.5

Continuing Recommendation 6: Continue efforts to develop an articulated and coordinated
Pre-K-12 curriculum and to provide consistency in curriculum implementation

 Language Arts Phase I has been a K-12 effort consistent with the CMA
recommendations.

 Subsequent core curriculum will be approached from a K-12 perspective

Continuing Recommendation 7: Continue to refine the program budgeting process with
decisions based on performance or results. Determine the cost benefit of programs to
determine whether or not programs should continue, be modified, or terminated.

 No action taken at this time.
 Loss of state aid and its impact on Program Budgeting may negatively impact 7 year

curriculum cycle.

Continuing Recommendation 8: Continue to prioritize the revision and development of

167



quality curriculum documents that are congruent with audit criteria and support the
instructional methodology desired by district leaders.

 In response to Rec 8.3, alternative electronic document management systems are
under review for curriculum management. Such systems would replace the use of the
District’s Intranet static PDF documents.

Continuing Recommendation 9: Continue to align new programs and initiatives with
board policies, strategic planning priorities, and the curriculum. Control the number of
district and building initiatives implemented. Provide staff development, support, and follow
through over several years to increase the likelihood of success.

 Only initiatives derived from the District’s Strategic Plan or the Board’s Goals for the
Superintendent have been undertaken this year as identified in Rec 9.1.

 Rec 9.3 calls for the review of the High Ability Learners (HAL) program.
MEP/Cadre Kim Rice has lead this effort with recommendations for identification
and program change forthcoming.

 Rec 9.4 was addressed in July 2007 in Rule 10,000.1
 Rec 9.6 is being addressed by the implementation of the data warehouse and Growth

Path Analytics software. This was approved by the Board on January 21, 2008.
 Continued work on elementary report cards and the implementation of K-1 standards

based report card next year in Infinite Campus address (Rec 9.6).

168



Post-Audit Continuing Recommendations

Recommendation ES HR P/E Tech Bus/

Fin

Gen

Adm

Supt Exec

Cabt

Policy/Rule Reference Action to be Taken Timeline

1: Establish a cycle of board policy review. Continue to

revise current policies or adopt new policies to provide

for local curriculum management and quality control.
1.1: Develop and adopt a policy that provides direction
for a full scope of long- and short-range district planning.
The policy should address development, implementation,
monitoring, evaluation, relationship to the budget
planning process, and public reporting procedures.

X Policy 10,000 The Superintendent
continues to direct that all
policies and rules should
be reviewed every seven
years. The Director of
Administrative Affairs is
tasked with tracking
Policy/Rule updates.
This requires that 78 be
reviewed and updated per
year; 54 have been so
updated this school year.

On-going

1.2: Develop and adopt a policy that requires a seven-
year cycle of board policy review. The cycle should be
developed so that the core curricular areas of
English/language arts, math, science, and social studies
are not reviewed in the same year.

X (Seven year curriculum
cycle 6120 & 6130,
6130.1 and BOE
Policy review cycle
8110 are different
issues. Watch for
undue stress on
teachers at given level)

1.3: Strengthen Board Policy 6120.1 to require that
primary instructional resources and textbooks, aligned to
the curriculum guides, are adopted by the board as part of
the review cycle.

X 6120.1
(Align with 6010.1
Review parallel
language or reference
each to the other)

This is addressed by Rule
6130.1 rather than
6120.1.

Done

1.4: Develop and adopt a policy that establishes time
allocations for instruction in the core content areas.

X (Rule 6031.1??
Provide ranges for
elem that corresponds
to Rule 10 and state
reporting—create rule
or add to current—add
pacing to K-12
curriculum guides)

Responsible Party

169



Post-Audit Continuing Recommendations

Recommendation ES HR P/E Tech Bus/

Fin

Gen

Adm

Supt Exec

Cabt

Policy/Rule Reference Action to be Taken Timeline
Responsible Party

1.5: Develop and adopt a policy that establishes program
budgeting procedures to ensure that planning priorities are
reflected in budgeting and spending.

X (Fossen and Program
Budgeting 3110 &
3110.1)

embed program
budgeting process into
Rule 3110.1

1.6: Establish a calendar of systematic policy review so
that board policies keep pace with current board
expectations. During the reviews, update terminology, job
titles referenced in policies, and legal requirements as
needed.

X (Supt. and Ex. Cabinet,
BOE 8110)

Supt. requires all BOE
Policies and Rules to be
updated every 7 years.
Matrix and calendar
maintained by Dir. Of
Admin Affairs

On-going

2: Revise the Table of Organization and Job

Descriptions to reflect current expectations, roles, and

responsibilities.
2.1: Revise the organizational chart to meet audit criteria
listed in Exhibit 2.2 and to support Pre-K-12 articulation
of the curriculum.

X (Supt. for
organizational chart)
(PK12 articulation to
ES Rule####)

- Create and staff a Pre-K-12 Curriculum Director
position. (This is an additional position in contrast to
combining Directors of Elem and Secondary—perhaps
a coordinator to maintain consistency and
documentation, etc. Would need a job description.)

X X No action planned at this
time.

- Redesign the MEP Facilitator positions to have Pre-
K-12 curriculum responsibilities.

X (Review current job
description of ES
MEP’s)

Most recent posting
assumed a K-12 posture
for MEP responsibilities

- Address the span of control for the Superintendent,
Associate Superintendent of Educational Services,
Elementary and Secondary Directors.

X X

- Clarify reporting relationships when job descriptions
list more than one supervisor.

X (HR—All job
descriptions that are
not a part of Section
2000 should be
available on the
Intranet even if
security 5 level)

HR is in the process of
posting job descriptions
(non-Admin) to District
Intranet

- Address scalar relationships and full inclusion. X X X (see page 33 for
definitions)

170



Post-Audit Continuing Recommendations

Recommendation ES HR P/E Tech Bus/

Fin

Gen

Adm

Supt Exec

Cabt

Policy/Rule Reference Action to be Taken Timeline
Responsible Party

2.2: Establish a practice for annual review and
modification of the table of organization to reflect current
district operations.

X

2.3: Develop job descriptions for all positions that are
accurate, complete, and comply with audit principles
described in Exhibit 2.3.

Done

- Establish a timeline for the creation of job
descriptions that meet audit criteria for every position in
the system; review at least every two years for updating
and adjustment. Develop a board policy based on this
directive.

X X

- Ensure that no position reports to more than one
supervisor. If the nature of the duties performed
requires coordinating with more than one administrator,
the job description needs to clarify the roles of multiple
supervisors. The final authority should be the person
who evaluates the employee.

X (HR—realistically
some positions may not
be able to avoid this)

- Update job descriptions for principals and assistant
principals to include expectations for monitoring the
delivery of the curriculum in the classroom.

X X Job descriptions for
building administrators
(2100.51, .52, .53, .54,
.55, .56, .57) were revised
and presented to the
Board on January 21,
2008

Done (Changes to
Board January 21,
2008)

Strengthen the job descriptions to reflect current
expectations: teaching the adopted curriculum;
implementing the Millard Instructional Model
expectations for the delivery of the curriculum (such as
differentiation, active engagement, etc.); maintaining
alignment of the written, taught, and tested curricula;
and using achievement and other data to assess
performance and adjust instruction.

X X Draft to HR from Ed
Services for review

Done --April 24,
2008

3: Revise curriculum management planning to address

audit recommendations.
3.1: Revise the current plan in the area of assessment,
adding or revising the following:

171



Post-Audit Continuing Recommendations

Recommendation ES HR P/E Tech Bus/

Fin

Gen

Adm

Supt Exec

Cabt

Policy/Rule Reference Action to be Taken Timeline
Responsible Party

- Make statements regarding the purposes and use of
assessment more specific, adopting a more formative
focus and providing specific examples of how
assessment data will be used in an ongoing fashion in
every phase of the curriculum cycle.

X X

- Specifically link the curriculum management plan
with the newly-developed student and program
assessment plans (see Recommendation 4).

X X

3.2: Revise the current plan in the area of curriculum
development, adding or revising the following:

- Add a step in the phase that requires all objectives
and outcomes be evaluated for quality, rigor,
measurability, and vertical alignment/spiraling. This
evaluation is termed a quality "screening" process, and
ensures that all objectives and outcomes are valid, up-to-
date, applicable to real-life contexts, and are rigorous. It
also ensures that all curriculum is vertically aligned and
that content is connected and spirals uninterrupted from
one level to the next.

X

- Require that all ELO and course objective
development be conducted from a K-12 perspective,
always beginning with the end in mind, to ensure that
rigor is maintained.

X

- Revise the sequence of steps in the first phase of the
curriculum cycle to place resource selection and
piloting after the development of Essential Learner
Outcomes, student objectives, and guides.

X

- Add a step that requires the solicitation of input from
external evaluation sources (never publishers) regarding
the quality and alignment of possible resource
adoptions.

X

172



Post-Audit Continuing Recommendations

Recommendation ES HR P/E Tech Bus/

Fin

Gen

Adm

Supt Exec

Cabt

Policy/Rule Reference Action to be Taken Timeline
Responsible Party

3.3: Review the job descriptions of MEP facilitators.
Consider requiring content area expertise and assigning
Pre-K-12 responsibility (see Recommendations 2 and 6.)

X X Educational Services is
making adjustments to
the MEP process to make
it more of a K-12 process,
but it does not believe
that this recommendation
can be fully implemented
without a significant
increase in the number of
MEP Facilitators
especially if this is to be
interpreted as one content
expert per discipline. At
this time, no further
action will be taken on
this recommendation.

On-going

4: Develop and initiate a program and student

assessment plan that includes the PDK/CMSi

Characteristics of a Comprehensive Student and

Program Assessment Plan. Include the development of

formal assessments that support district curricular

offerings.

Action on the
Assessment System
was postponed in
anticipation of
legislative decisions
regarding State
Assessments

Post-poned

4.1: Develop a student and program assessment plan with
components that meet the PDK/CMSi characteristics of a
comprehensive program and student assessment plan.
Obtain Board of Education approval for the plan.

X X

4.2: Continue to develop and initiate end-of-course
assessments that can be centrally managed and used to
determine student competency in the specific course.

X

4.3: Develop and implement initiatives with a goal of
increasing student performance on nationally nonmed
achievement tests.

X X (Strat Plan Objective
#1 & Parameter #6)

4.4: Provide ongoing district-level training on the use of
student assessment data to make decisions to increase
student achievement.

X X

173



Post-Audit Continuing Recommendations

Recommendation ES HR P/E Tech Bus/

Fin

Gen

Adm

Supt Exec

Cabt

Policy/Rule Reference Action to be Taken Timeline
Responsible Party

4.5: Improve program assessment procedures to include
specifications for the data to be collected and the
provision of information on the effectiveness of programs.
Use these data to make decisions on program
continuation, modification, or termination. Require that
program evaluations be reported to the Board of
Education on an annual basis.

X

5: Continue to focus the staff development program to:

provide connectivity between curriculum design and

classroom delivery, provide linkage to goals and district

long-range plans, provide staff development based on

identified needs, and foster improved teacher

performance and student achievement.
5.1: Include in Board Policy 6400 the requirement of a
written, comprehensive staff development plan. Add this
responsibility to the Director of Staff Development's job
description (Board Policy 2100.28).

X A Comprehensive Staff
Development Plan was
assembled and
presented to the Board
as a report on March 3,
2008. This Plan aligns
the initiatives of the
District and focuses the
staff development
activities as
recommended in the
audit.

Done

5.2: Provide staff development that is based on student
needs and weaknesses as determined by the use of
disaggregated student assessment data and teacher
appraisal information.

X X Comp Staff Dev. Plan Done

5.3: Develop a systematic and consistent staff
development program evaluation process that is based on
the criteria listed in Board Policy 6400.1.

X

5.4: Provide a system that is designed to ensure the
institutionalization of district-wide staff development
initiatives. Future staff development initiatives should be
limited until institutionalization of existing programs has
been achieved.

X Comp Staff Dev. Plan Done

5.5: Include differentiated staff development for all
employees.

X X Comp Staff Dev. Plan Done

174



Post-Audit Continuing Recommendations

Recommendation ES HR P/E Tech Bus/

Fin

Gen

Adm

Supt Exec

Cabt

Policy/Rule Reference Action to be Taken Timeline
Responsible Party

5.6: Place all staff development efforts including the
New Teacher Induction Program under the leadership of
the Director of Staff Development.

X X

6: Continue efforts to develop an articulated and

coordinated Pre-K-12 curriculum and to provide

consistency in curriculum implementation.
6.1: Structure and operate the Educational Services
division from a Pre-K-12 perspective (see
Recommendation 2).

X Language Arts Phase
I has been a K-12
effort consistent with
the CMA
recommendations.
Subsequent core
curriculum will be
approached from a K-
12 perspective

On-going

- Continue with Pre-K-12 curriculum development. X

- Establish a Pre-K-12 curriculum director position
and K-12 MEP facilitator positions. Continue to
vertically align and coordinate program initiatives, such
as IB, AP, etc.

X X

6.2: Improve the quality of curriculum documents so they
provide vertical articulation and the specificity needed to
guide teaching and learning (see Recommendation 8).

X

- Develop a scope and sequence for all curriculum
guides.

X

- Include instructional strategies and sample model
lessons in curriculum guides.

X

6.3: Continue to use Professional Learning Communities
as a vehicle for increasing articulation and coordination
within schools.

X

6.4: Clearly state and align expectations for monitoring
the curriculum in board policy, administrators' job
descriptions, and appraisal instruments.

X X

175



Post-Audit Continuing Recommendations

Recommendation ES HR P/E Tech Bus/

Fin

Gen

Adm

Supt Exec

Cabt

Policy/Rule Reference Action to be Taken Timeline
Responsible Party

- Support the revision of administrative priorities to
ensure focus on classroom visits and related practices
and to promote instructional leadership and coaching
among principals and assistant principals at all grade
levels.

X

- Hold administrators accountable for monitoring the
delivery of the curriculum, conducting classroom walk-
throughs, and providing constructive feedback to
teachers. Link administrative evaluations to effective
curriculum monitoring practices.

X

- Continue to do joint walk-throughs, and provide the
next level of training in classroom walk-throughs.

X

6.5: Specify and align expectations for instructional
practices in board policy, the teacher's job description,
and the appraisal instrument.

X

- Focus district professional development on expected
instructional strategies (e.g., use of technology in the
classroom, differentiated instruction and student needs
identified through assessment data analysis). Such
training should be required of all administrators and
teachers, with follow-up procedures established.

X

- Develop a commonly understood model for
differentiated instruction in the Millard Public Schools
to meet the diversity of learner needs. Include strategies
and model lessons in curriculum guides.

X

7: Continue to refine the program budgeting process

with decisions based on performance or results.

Determine the cost benefit of programs to determine

whether or not programs should continue, be modified,

or terminated.

No Action Take at this
Time. Loss of state aid
and its impact on
Program Budgeting may
negatively impact 7 year
curriculum cycle.

Post-poned

7.1: Continue to review budget development policies and
rules to provide ongoing direction for the program based-
budgeting process.

X

7.2: Evaluate the program-based budgeting process
annually to determine if changes should be made

X

176



Post-Audit Continuing Recommendations

Recommendation ES HR P/E Tech Bus/

Fin

Gen

Adm

Supt Exec

Cabt

Policy/Rule Reference Action to be Taken Timeline
Responsible Party

7.3: Incorporate the tenets of criteria in the budget
development process that are recommended by the
CMSi/PDK auditors. Specifically focus on the use of
student performance and program data to make budgetary
decisions.

X X

7.4: Review the staffing allocation process to determine
if resources are being allocated to schools with identified
needs.

X

8: Continue to prioritize the revision and development

of quality curriculum documents that are congruent

with audit criteria and support the instructional

methodology desired by district leaders.
8.1: Clearly define, with references to professional or
other literature used in staff development trainings, what
quality instruction looks like in the classroom, particularly
in world-class schools. Include in this description the type
of strategies and approaches district leaders expect to see
in every classroom, regardless of the grade level or
content area. These descriptions should be detailed in the
written curriculum documents, and stand apart from the
suggested approaches or strategies that form a component
of the guides. This piece is intended to define what
instruction (the delivery of curriculum) should look like;
the suggested strategies are intended to provide teachers
with specific ideas on how to teach an objective or skill.
Include examples of effective differentiation for different
learning styles and skill levels, congruent with former
trainings.

X

177



Post-Audit Continuing Recommendations

Recommendation ES HR P/E Tech Bus/

Fin

Gen

Adm

Supt Exec

Cabt

Policy/Rule Reference Action to be Taken Timeline
Responsible Party

8.2: Revise the current policy for curriculum format and
components, requiring guides to meet criteria more than
just beyond the minimum components. Also, require the
needed levels of specificity for each component and
specify that the components themselves be internally
aligned. For example, while the objectives specifically
define the content and standard of performance of
instruction, the suggested lessons and strategies, along
with exemplary student assignments and practice
activities, define the context and cognitive rigor of
instruction. All parts should work in concert, assisting
teachers in their task of facilitating and eliciting each
child's learning. While alignment of the written, taught,
and tested curriculum is desired in the implementation of
the educational program across the district, similar
alignment is desired within the curriculum documents
themselves: objectives with suggested strategies, and
these in turn with the assessment instruments.

X

8.3: Streamline the electronic document management
system for curriculum documents. Discuss the needed
format; reorganize so components are grouped in
appropriate sections. For example, rather than placing
everything under "resources" or "documents," group
everything under "curriculum," then organize curriculum
by content area, course, and/or grade. For each
curriculum, design a format whereby one can go to each
component of the guide, such as:

X

Alternative electronic
document management
systems are under
review for curriculum
management. Such
systems would replace
the use of the District’s
Intranet static PDF
documents.

- Descriptions of model instruction for that grade
level/content area, with video clips of master teachers;

X

- Any pertinent and relevant information from best
practices, including philosophy and belief statements
regarding how children best learn this content and in
what kind of environment;

X

- ELOs, standards and benchmarks, and enabling
objectives;

X

178



Post-Audit Continuing Recommendations

Recommendation ES HR P/E Tech Bus/

Fin

Gen

Adm

Supt Exec

Cabt

Policy/Rule Reference Action to be Taken Timeline
Responsible Party

- Sample assessment items, links to formative
assessment instruments, and end-of-course assessments
or other tests;

X X

- Suggested strategies and/or lesson plans, with any
resources or materials needed;

X

- Suggested "mastery-level" student performance
activities/projects, with accompanying rubrics. These
assignments are designed to serve as authentic
assessments, and provide students the opportunity to
demonstrate mastery of the target concepts, knowledge,
or skills. Using rubrics, the results of these performance-
based assess-ments can be collected for analysis and
used for both grading and instructional decision making.

X

8.4: Link suggested strategies to specific units and/or
weeks. Have an "overview" page for every course within
a content area that shows how content is organized into
thematic or conceptual units or by units of time, and
provide the links to suggested lessons/strategies. From
those strategies or lessons, provide links to the available
student activities.

X

8.5: Revisit with all MEP facilitators as well as future
curriculum development committees what quality,
specific, and measurable enabling objectives look like.
Ensure that all committees and facilitators involved in the
development process have high quality sample guides
from which to glean ideas for the guide under revision,
and require all guides to be screened for quality (by
designated persons, always the same ones) before they are
disseminated to teachers and schools.

X

8.6: Revisit, by content area, what differentiation looks
like in the classroom. Integrate this content with the
training in expectations for instructional delivery; this
should all form a major part of the MIM training and
reinforce district efforts to seamlessly unite curriculum
and teaching.

X

179



Post-Audit Continuing Recommendations

Recommendation ES HR P/E Tech Bus/

Fin

Gen

Adm

Supt Exec

Cabt

Policy/Rule Reference Action to be Taken Timeline
Responsible Party

9: Continue to align new programs and initiatives with

board policies, strategic planning priorities, and the

curriculum. Control the number of district and building

initiatives implemented. Provide staff development,

support, and follow through over several years to

increase the likelihood of success.
9.1: Prioritize and limit the number of initiatives
introduced at the district and school levels each year.

X X
Only initiatives derived
from the District’s
Strategic Plan or the
Board’s Goals for the
Superintendent have
been undertaken this
year as identified in
Rec 9.1.

- Establish a district leadership level clearinghouse to
prioritize and monitor the number of new programs and
innovations developed to address the goals of the
Strategic Plan.

X X

- Expect that school improvement teams consider
district initiatives, new curriculum, and assessment
requirements when adding additional school-based
programs.

X

9.2: Require systematic evaluation of both district level
and school programs.

X

9.3: Evaluate and revise the HAL program so as to
provide a high quality, consistent educational program to
meet the needs of gifted and talented students.

X
Rec 9.3 calls for the
review of the High
Ability Learners (HAL)
program. MEP/Cadre
Kim Rice has lead this
effort with
recommendations for
identification and
program change
forthcoming.

Done

180



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Suspension Reduction Program Report

MEETING DATE: May 19, 2008

DEPARTMENT: Pupil Services

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Suspension Reduction Program: When a
student violates the “Alcohol or other Drugs” provision (First Offense Only) of the
Student Code of Conduct they receive a suspension for nineteen (19) school days. They
are also suspended from extracurricular activities during the time of the suspension.
Parents, at their own expense, may choose to participate in the District-approved
suspension reduction program. Successful completion of this program may reduce the
suspension and curtailment of extracurricular activities by a maximum of nine (9) school
days (results in a total of ten (10) days out of school).

ACTION DESIRED: XX Information Only

BACKGROUND: During the past two years a “task force” was put together to evaluate
the current manner in which “alcohol and other drug” infractions are handled by the
District. The task force developed several action plans to strengthen aspects of the
District’s plan. Action Plan #3 was developed to evaluate and improve the suspension
reduction program.

OPTIONAL/ALTERNATIVE
CONSIDERATIONS: N/A

RECOMMENDATIONS: Information Only

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: Strategy #7/Superintendent Goals

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION
OR REJECTION: Information Only

TIMELINE: Beginning of 2008-09 school year

PERSONS RESPONSIBLE: Kraig J. Lofquist, Director of Pupil Services

ASST. SUPERINTENDENT: ________________________________

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL: _________________________________

181

sphelps
Keith's signature

sphelps
Text Box
Dr. Kirby Eltiste



Suspension Reduction Program Report

Millard Public School students who violate the “Alcohol or other Drugs” provision of the
District’s code of conduct may at their own expense, choose to participate in a District-
approved suspension reduction program. Successful completion of this program may
reduce the suspension and curtailment of extracurricular activities by a maximum of nine
(9) school days (results in a total of ten (10) days out of school). This opportunity is made
available only to first time offenders.

The current suspension reduction program operated by the Mid America Council was
evaluated for its strengths and weaknesses. Certain aspects of the current program were
removed and other components were strengthened to ensure students and families learn
as much as possible about the adverse consequences of using alcohol and/or other drugs.

A particular focus was placed on an “assessment” component to determine the severity of
a student’s alcohol and/or other drug usage. An additional focus was placed on quality
education and family involvement. Several agencies including Heartland Family
Services, NOVA Therapeutic Communities and Abintra Counseling were contacted to
evaluate the best approach to be used by the District. Four criteria were evaluated
including program quality, time, cost and location. Abintra Counseling was determined to
be the best in each category.

182



Current

Mid-America Council
School Suspension Reduction Program

Point system-Student are required to obtain a total of twenty points by completing one or
more of the following conditions as assigned by the suspension reduction program staff.

1. Attend assigned meetings which cover:

 Goal setting = 2 points per meeting
 Self-esteem = 2 points per meeting
 Drug and alcohol education = 2 points per meeting
 Career planning = 2 points per meeting

2. Attend tour of correctional facility = 5 points

3. Participate in a chemical dependency evaluation = 5 points

4. Write essays = 1 point

5. Write apology letters = 1 point

6. Attend Alcoholic Anonymous, Al-Anon, Narcotics Anonymous meetings = 2 points per meeting

7. Participate in individual, group or family counseling = 5 points

8. Complete 5-10 hours of community service at assigned agency = 1 point per hour.

183



Updated

Millard Public School Suspension Reduction Program

Mid America Council
Abintra Counseling Center

Millard Public Schools

Step I

Mandatory participation:

1. Student will complete a chemical dependency assessment through Abintra
Counseling Services. Parents must attend the evaluation and participate in a
“collateral interview” in order to obtain the best assessment results. The results
and recommendations of the assessment will be shared with parents, student and
school. Follow-up interventions will be supported by the School Community
Intervention Program (SCIP) team. Parents must sign a release so results can be
shared with the Mid America Council and Millard Public Schools.

2. Student and parents will attend an Alcohol and Other Drug Education class. See
Appendix I for specific course information.

Both mandatory items must be completed before moving to Step II of the
Suspension Reduction Program. (Cost for chemical dependency assessment and
class: $100)

Step II

Student and Parent will contact the Mid America Council to set up a meeting after
successfully completing Step I.

Mid America Council

Students are required to obtain a total of 30 points while in this portion of the program.

Mid-America Council program coordinator will develop a detailed program from the
following:

1. Attend meetings at Mid-America Council:

Goal setting = 2 points
Self-esteem = 2 points
Alcohol and other drug education = 2 points
Career planning = 2 points

184



2. Attend tour of correctional facility = 5 points

3. Attend Alcoholic Anonymous, Al-Anon, Narcotics Anonymous meetings with
parent = 3 points per meeting

4. Research and write essay on alcohol and other drug topic = 3 points
(Essay requirements have been increased.)

5. Participate in individual, group or family counseling = 5 points

6. Complete 15 hours of community service at assigned agency and write
an essay which summarizes experience = 10 points

7. Attend additional Alcohol and other Drug Education classes through
Abintra Counseling Services = 5 points (this is based on the initial evaluation
conducted by Abintra)

Cost of Mid-America portion of the School Suspension Reduction Program: $50

Comparison

Agency/Location Time Cost
Abintra Counseling Center
4780 S. 131 Street

Upon Request $100.00 for Evaluation
and Course/$50.00 Mid
America Council

Heartland Family Services
2101 S. 42nd Street

Courses are offered
one time per month

$95-$140
Evaluation/$50.00 Mid
America Council

Nova Therapeutic Communities
1941 South 42nd Street, Suite
224

Courses offered
sporadically

$250.00 Evaluation
/$50.00 Mid America
Council

185



Appendix I

Four-Hour Family Alcohol and Drug Education Course Outline

Course Goal: To intervene within the family of adolescents that have had substance-
related problems, in order to educate, inform, raise awareness, and promote generational
change in attitudes and behaviors regarding substance abuse.

Course Objectives:

1. To encourage the self-evaluation of substance use/abuse patterns by the
adolescent.

2. To inform all participants of the physical, psychological, and sociological effects
of substance use/abuse.

3. To promote parental awareness of signs of substance use/abuse by adolescent.

4. To facilitate the family’s communication process on issues surrounding
substances.

5. To educate the parents on effective parenting styles with adolescent substance
users.

6. To answer questions about substance use, abuse and related issues.

7. To address Risk Factors (see below) and encourage Protective Factors (see below)
regarding Substance Abuse.

8. To deliver appropriate services in an ethical manner.

Risk Factors: (To be addressed directly): 1. Chaotic Home Environment; 2. Ineffective
Parenting; 3. Little Mutual Attachment and Nurturing; 4. Inappropriate Shy or
Aggressive Classroom Behavior; 5. Academic Failure; 6. Low Academic Aspirations; 7.
Poor Social Coping Skills; 8. Affiliations with Deviant Peers; 9. Perceived External
Approval of Drug Use (Peer, Family, Community); 10. Parental Substance Abuse or
Mental Illness. (from Child and Adolescent Substance Abuse: Interventions in
Identification, Treatment, and Prevention – Cross Country University)

Protective Factors: (To be promoted directly): 1. Strong Family Bonds; 2. Parental
Engagement in Adolescent’s Life; 3. Clear Expectations and Consequences; 4. Academic
Success; 5. Strong Bonds with Pro-Social Institutions (School, Church, Community), 6.
Conventional Norms about Drugs and Alcohol (from Child and Adolescent Substance
Abuse: Interventions in Identification, Treatment, and Prevention – Cross Country
University)

186



Course Outline:

1. Pre-Test – Ice Breaker (15 minutes): Parents knowledge vs. Adolescent knowledge –
(Objectives addressed: 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 7, 8 – Risk Factors addressed: 9, 10 –
Protective Factors addressed: 3, 6)

2. Story Introduction – Adolescents Share (10 minutes): Adolescent introduces family
and explains situation that led to taking class (Objective 1 – Protective Factors
addressed: 1, 5)

3. Parenting Style – Participatory Lecture (30-45 minutes): Expectations, Example,
Involvement, Encouragement, Boundaries, Alcohol and Drug Free Environment
(from When It Comes from You: Six Prevention Strategies for Parents – Nebraska
Council to prevent alcohol and Drug Abuse) (Objectives addressed: 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8
– Risk Factors addressed: 2, 3, 8, 9, 10 – Protective Factors addressed: 1, 2, 3, 5,
6)

4. Tobacco, Alcohol, and Marijuana: The Gateway Drugs – Participatory Lecture (60
minutes): Effects on Physical, Psychological, and Social Health - (Objectives
addressed: 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 7, 8 – Risk Factors addressed: 7, 8, 9, 10 – Protective
Factors addressed: 3, 6)

5. Levels of Use – Participatory Lecture (30-45 minutes): Non-User, Experimentation,
Social Use, Misuse, Abuse, Dependence - (Objectives addressed: 1, 2, 3, 6, 7, 8 –
Risk Factors addressed: 9, 10 – Protective Factors addressed: 3, 6)

6. The Progressive Nature: The Advanced Drugs – Participatory Lecture (15 minutes):
Looking for the Effects of Methamphetamine, Cocaine, Heroin, Ecstasy, and
Hallucinogens – (Objectives addressed: 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 7, 8 – Risk Factors
addressed: 7, 8, 9, 10 – Protective Factors addressed: 3, 6)

7. Plan Creation (45 minutes): Done as a Family Unit – Fill out Comprehensive form
Together with Counselor Guidance – (Objectives addressed: 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 –
Risk Factors addressed: 2, 3, 7, 8, 9, 10 – Protective Factors addressed: 1, 2, 3,
5, 6)

8. Review and Conclude (10 minutes)

187


	Board Packet May 19, 2008
	Agenda
	Administrative Memorandum
	E.1. Board Minutes May 5, 2008
	Financials
	E.4. Committee Minutes May 12, 2008
	G.1. Approval of Policy 10001 - Site Based Planning and Management - Mini Magnets
	Policy 10001
	H.1. Millard North High School Graduates
	H.1. Millard South High School Graduates
	H.1. Millard West High School Graduates
	H.2. Approval of Rule 10001.1 - Site Based Planning and Management - Mini Magnet Development
	Rule 10001.1
	H.3. Approval of Rule 10001.2 - Site Based Planning and Management - Center Development: A Plan for Low Enrollment Buildings
	Rule 10001.2
	H.4. First Reading of Policy 4300 - Human Resources - Professional Growth/Inservice
	Policy 4300
	H.5. First Reading of Policy 6200 - Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - Taught Curriculum - Instructional Delivery
	Policy 6200
	H.6. Reaffirm Policy 6700 - Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - Co-Curricular Activities
	Policy 6700
	H.7. Reaffirm Rule 6700.2 - Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - Interscholastic Athletics and Activities - Approval Procedures and Criteria
	H.8. Reaffirm of Rule 6700.4 - Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - Extracurricular School Sponsored Clubs and Activities, and Interscholastic Athletics and Activities - School Social Events
	H.9.  Reaffirm of Rule 6700.5 - Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - Extracurricular School Sponsored Clubs and Activities, and Interscholastic Athletics and Activities - Intramural Athletics
	H.10. Administrator for Hire
	H.11. Personnel Actions:  Amendment to Continuing Contracts, Leave(s) of Absence, Resignatio(s), and New Hire(s)
	Amendment to Continuing Contracts
	Leave of Absence
	Resignations
	New Hires
	I.1. Parent Opinion Surveys
	I.2. Enrollment Projections
	I.3. Curriculum Management Audit Update
	I.4. Suspension Reduction Program Report



